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1. KEY UNIVERSITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT
(a) Background information

Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and Technology (JOOUST) is & Public University
established under the University Act No.42 of 2012 to train dependable manpower, offer high quality
University teaching, and to carry out innovative research and community outreach programmes for
sustainable socio-economic development. JOOUST was founded in 2009 through Legal Order No. 56
of 11" May, 2009 as a Constituent College of Maseno University. The University was chartered as a
fully-fMledged institution of higher leaming on 13™ February, 2013.

(b}  Principal Activities

JIOOUST 15 committed to deliver on its mandate of Teaching, Research and Innovation in support of
the achievement of National Development Agenda. To this end, JOOUST has differentiated itself as
a centre of excellence in training, research and community outreach services offering practical and
market-oriented courses. JOOUST continually realigns her strategies and programmes in response to
changes and emerging trends in operational environment and benchmarks with global best practices.

Vision

A bvaeon of excellene: in Universlty Education and Rescareh
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Core Values

Customwr Focus Profesannakizm

Merilicracy

' These values espouse the philosophy of holistic scholarship, service to humanity through wisdom,
science and technology.
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Strategic Themes
In the 2021-2026 Strategic Plan, JOOUST focus is on the following strategic objectives:

The obligation to offer quality education and training that meets the market demand, global
standards and statutory & regulatory requirements.

The need to create new knowladge through Research, [nnovation and consultancy.

The requirement to disseminate research output and innovations to the community through
partnerships and linkages.

Inadequate infrastructural capacity (human, financial and capital) to facilitate optimal
operations of the University to deliver on its mandate.

The need for aggressive resource mobilization to support implementation of identified
shrategies

Strategic Ohjectives

(c)

To provide quality education and training that meets market, statutory and regulatory
requirements and global standards;

To conduct research and consultancy in order to create new knowledge;

To disseminate research & technological innovations 1o the community;

To build capacity of the University to deliver on its mandate

To mobilize resources for the achievement of the Uiniversity's mandate

Key Management

The University’s day-to-day management is under the following key organs:
# The University Council

- B B & &

(d)

Council Commuitiees

The Vice Chancellor f CEC

The University Senate

Senafte Committes

The University Management Board

Fiduciary Management

The University direct fiduciary responsibility vests in the Viee Chancellor, with delegated

i

onsibilities to the members of the University Management Board. Dunng the financial year ended
Tune 2022, the key management personnel who held office and who had direct Dduciary

responsibility were:

i)
1)

1Ly
iv)
v)

Vi)
vii)

Professor Stephen Gaya Agong - Vice Chancellor and Chief Executive Officer.

Professor Benson Estambale - Deputy Vice Chancellor — Research, Innovation &
Ohatreach (BRI

Professor Joseph Bosire - Deputy Vice Chancellor — Academic Affairs (AA)

Dr. Walter Akuno - Registrar ~ Academic Affairs,

Dy Patrick Akhaukwa - Registrar — Planning and Administration.

C5. Rosemary Npesa - Registrar — RIO (Up to January 2022)

CPA Nancy M. Muchai - Chief Finance Officer.

vin) Mr. Dickson Seda - Procurement Manager
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(e} Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements _
The University is answerable to key government organs on financial management. The organs that

provide oversight are listed below.

1) University Council

i) Councd Commitiees

i) Office of the Auditor General

iv) Public Investments Committes (P.LC) Committee of the National Assembly

v} Commission for University Education
wi) Public Procurement Oversight Authority
vii) Ethics and Anti-Corruption Commission

The University Council and its commitees provide fiduciary oversight on the University financial
operations through the Finance, Administration and Human Resources Commuitice. The Committee
reviews the Cuarterly and Annual Financial Statements before they are submutted 1o the Minstry of

Education and the National Treasury,

The Audit, Risk and Governance Committee provides oversight on the University's financial
operations and financial statements through the Inlernal Audit of the University. [t also provides

oversight on internal controls and mamtenance of proper accounting records.

The Office of the Auditor General (OAG) provides annual audits of the operations of the Umiversity.
The reports of the Auditor General are submitted to the National Assembly through the Public

Investments Committee (P.LC) which provides the overall fiductary oversight on the operations of
the University

Repular audit and financial and progress reports are provided to development partners who have
provided funds to the University. This is 1o ensure financial probity on the uiilization of funds in the

Ulniversity.
(M) University Headquoarters

Main Campus, Bondo-Usenge Road
P.O Box 210-40601
Bondo, Kenva

(g) University Contacts
Telephone: (254) 057-2058000¢/2501804
E-mail: ve@jooust.ac ke

Website: wwow jooustac. ke

{h) University Bankers

Kenyva Commercial Bank Lid
Bondo Branch

P. O, Box 598 - 40601

Bondo, Kenya
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Equity Bank Lid
Bondo Branch

P.O Box 26 - 40601
Bondo, Kenya

Co-operative Bank of Kenva Lid
Boendo Branch

P.O. Box 380 - 4060]

Bondo, Kenva

ABSA Bank of Kenya Lid
Kisumu Branch

P.O Box B31 - 40100
Kisumu, Kenya

(i) Independent Auditors
Auditor Greneral

Office of the Auditor General
Anmversary Towers, University Way
P.0). Box 30084

GOP 00100

MNairobi, Kenya

(i} Principal Legal Adviser
The Aorney General

State Law Office

Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box 40112

City Squane ()

Mairohki, Kenyva
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1. THE UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

NAME: Prof, Shem Oyoo Wandiga, FRSC, D.SC.(he)
YOB: 1939
POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES:

Chairman of the Council
He was gazetted as the Chair of the Council with effect from 8% July 2022.

QUALIFICATIONS: EBS, Frsc, B.Sc¢ (Howard University}, M.5c.
(Maryland), Ph.D (Reserve University)

WORK EXPERIENCE: Piof Wandiga has a long working expenence in
academia, research, consultancy, admimstrative and advisory roles. These
include in the following areas:

University of Nairobi: Professor; DVC (Administration & Finance); Principal
College of Biological & Physical Science; Chair of Department Chemistry
Dept.; Senior. Lecturer; Lecturer {inorganic Chemistry. Co-ordinator University
Investment Project.

Chairman - Kenya National Academy of Sciences; Chairman - Intemational
Geosphere-Biosphere Programme Kenya Committee; Chairman - Constitutive
Committee of African Union of Pure & Applied Chemistry and a member Kenya
Chemical Society. Kenya's Representative to UNESCO Executive Board,
Expert Consultant to UNEP; Member of General of the International Council of
Scientific Unions; Chairman Programme and Extemal Relations Commissions
of UNESCO Executive Board; Member World Conference on Science Caze
Western Reserve University & University of Maryland. Teaching Assistant Inter
American University: Temporary Assistant Professor of Chemistry.

YOB: 1960

Prof. Stephen Gaya Agong

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Vice Chancellor, Chief Executive
Cifficer and Secretary (o the Council

QOUALIFICATIONS: BSc, MSc, (UoN), PhD (Giessen), Post Doc (Hannover;
Okayama), FAAS

WORK EXPERIENCE: Professor of Horticulture with wide experience in
University Management and Leadership spanning over 32 years in different
Universities and International orzanizations. He 15 an academic of lugh standing
with over 100 scientific publications in refereed journals. He is a fellow of the
Africa Academy of Sciences and Matsume (Japan).

NAME: Ms. Joyee M. Karinge

YOB: 1979

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Chairperson, Technical, Academie,
Resecarch and Projects Committee and Member of Finance Committee.

QUALIFICATIONS: B Ed (KLU), MBA (ANLI), MSP

L]
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with diverse expertise in banking and leadership.

MNAME: Mr. Ihrahim M. Mutembei

YOR: 1966

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Chairman of Finance, Human Resource
and Administration Committes and Member of JOOUTES Board

QUALIFICATIONS: LLB Hon (UON), MA (Moi), DIP Law (KSL) DIP DBM
{UON), CPA Part One.

WORK EXPERIENCE: Member of the Law Society of Kemva (LSK); a
Managing Partner with Hagsan Mutzmbei and Co. Advocates, Wice Chairman of
Communications and Multimedia Appeals Tnbunal; Served as Chairman of Myern
County Land Management board {NLC). He has worked as a senior Accounts
Administrator with Crown Paints (K) Limited and also served as a Hanagmg
Director with Timhomes Limited for over 10 years.

WORK EXPERIENCE: She is a Certified Prince 2 professional with 14 years
and has wide prrvale sector experience in the program and project management

NAME: CPA. Micah Origa
YOB: 1977

and Audit Committees of Council.

{UoN), CPA (K).

Treasury.

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: A member of Finance, Technical
QUALIFICATIONS: B. Com, MBA (Calicut University) MSC-Finance

WORK EXPERIENCE: He has wide professional and work experience
| in the Public Sector stretching over 15 years in Public Finance Managemest,
| Public Sector Budgetary Formulation and Management coupled with
outstanding corperate governance. He has served in several other Boards. He
is the Alternate Member in the Council to Cabinet Secretary, the National

NAME: Mr. Zeth Ouma Omollo

YOB: 1981

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Member of Awdit and Technical
Commuttees of Council.

QUALIFICATIONS: BA (Strategic Management), BED
Sc (K1, MBA (UoN), CPA-3, Dip HR, PhD (ongoing, UolN)

WORK EXPERIENCE: Management and Human Resource Consultant. A
Member of the Kenya Bureau of Standards (KEBS) Technical Commitiees on
Human Resource Monapement, and Statistical Tools and Measurement; the
Intermational Organization for Standardization (IS0) Techmeal Committee on
Human Resource Management and the Institute of Human Resource Management
(MIHEM) and the Kenya Institute of Management (MEIM). He is the Executive
Director, Vicom Consultants Limited and a Pariner at ZET-LAB Consulting; he s
a Consultant with the World Bank Funded-EKenya Devolution Support Program

Yii
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[KDSP) under the Key Results Arcas (KRAs) and has wide professional and work |
experience in both public and private sectors.

'..ﬂ"

YOB: 1974
POSITION/KEY RESPONSIRILITIES:
Chairman - Audit, Risk and Governance Committes.

QUALIFICATIONS: ACAMS, ACL Chartered MCSI, B.Ed (Hons) (Mo
University), EMBA, MSc, PhD (JEUAT).

WORK EXPERIENCE: Dr. Kangopo is a banker with expertise in Corporate
Govemance, Regulatory Compliance, Anti-Money Laundering (AML),
Pensions Management, Operational Risk and Business re-engineening. He has
been a lecturer i risk management and procurement at the Jomo Kenyatta
University of Agriculure & Technology (JKUAT) and Africa Nazarene
University {ANU). His banking experience spans over 19 years and focused
mainly on nsk management roles. Dr. Jonah K. Kangogo was the acting Chair
to the University Council during the financial vear from 23™ August 2021 to

10" June 2022.

NAME: CPA Dismas Cpande Opot

YOB: 1968

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: CPA Ogot 15 the Representative
of the Principal Secretary, State Department for University Education and
Research,

QUALIFICATIONS: MBA {Strategic Management), and BA Economics,
(Hons) Degrees (LioN),

WORK EXPERIENCE: He is the Semor Chicf Finance Officer at the State
Department for University Education and Research. He is a Public Sector
Financial Management expert with extensive experience, skills and
competencies in crosg-cutting senior level general management in both the
public and private sectors spanning over 29 years. Previously, he served as
the Director of Finance and Economic Planning at Narobi Metropolitan
Services (NMS) and at the Public Service Commission. He has also worked
as the Senior Chief Finance Officer (State Law Oifice & Department of
Justice); Deputy Accountant General at the Nahonal Treasury, Principal
Accounts Controller of the Kenya Judiciary and in senior and middle level
management posilions in the private sector. CPA Ogot has chaired boards of
schools and served as alternate to the Principal Secretary™Mational Treasury
in Maasai Mara University Council. He has mobilized and participated
several community transformational initiatives. He is mamied and blessed
with children.

il



Jaramogi Oginge Odinga University of Science and Technology
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

NAME: Janet Masimiyu Wekesa
YORB: 1981
POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Member of Finance and

Technical Committees of Council.

QUALIFICATIONS: LLB {Moi), PG Dip in Law (KSL), MBA {USIU},
Arbitrator's (Chartered Institute of Arbitrators), CS- Section 4

WORK EXPERIENCE: An advocate of the High Coun; a Parmner at
Gazemba Wekesa & Co. Advocates, a Private Law Firm that majors in
Commercial, Conveyancing and Consultancy services. She has wide
experience in the private and public sectors. She has worked with Credit Bank
Ltd, a firancial institution for over five years as the Head of Legal &
Recoveries Department. She is a Board Member at the Advocates Benevolent
Association (ABA), the Communication & Multi-Media Appeals Tribunal
(CAMAT), Law Society of Kenya (LSK) and Intemational Commission of
Jurists (ICJ) and East Africa Law Society (EALS).

i
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3. UNIVERSITY MANAGEMENT TEAM

NAME: Prof Stephen Gays Agong’
YOB: | 940
POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Vice Chancellor & Chief Executive

Officer, Secretary to the University Coundil

QUALIFICATIONS: BSc, MSc, (UoN), PhD (Giessen), Post Doc (Hannover;
Okayama), FAAS

WORK EXPERIENCE: He 15 a Professor of Horticulture with wide
experience in University Management and Leadership spanning over 32 years in
different Universities and Intemational organizations. He is an academac of high
standing with over 100 scientific publications in refereed journals, A fellow of
the Africa Academy of Sciences and Matsume (Japan).

‘ \ .

NAME: Prof. Joseph Bosire
YOB: 1959

& Finanee

WORK EXPERIENCE:
He has over 25 years of academic and administrative ex

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Deputy Vice Chancellor -
Academic Affairs & Ag. Deputy Viee Chancellor — Planning, Administration

QUALIFICATIONS: B.Ed. (UoN), M.Ed and Ph.D. (KL7)

IETIENCE,

MNAME: Prof Benson Estambale

YOB: 1953

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Deputy Vice Chancellor — Research
Innovation & Dutreach

QUALIFICATIONS: M.B. Ch.B (UoN), M.Sc; DTM&H, (LSTM), Ph.D (UoN)

WORK EXPERIENCE:

A Professor of Medical Microbiology, he has over 33 years of academic and
administrative cxpenience at University level and has wide publication record in
the ficld of medicine, —

NAME: Dr, Walter Akuno
YOB: 1965

WORK EXPERIENCE:

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Registrar ~ Academic Affairs

QUALIFICATIONS: Dip., B.Sc. M.5c. and Ph.D. {Egerton)

He has over 24 years' experience in administration in the public service and
university environment, He is responsible to the DVC (AA) for administration of

Umiversity academic programmes.
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"WNAME: CS. Dr. Patrick J. Akhaukwa, PhD, CPS(K), MIHRM

YOR: 1963
POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Repistrar —  Planning &

Administration

QUALIFICATIONS: BA (KU, M.Sc. (MMUST), Ph.D> (Moi)

WORK EXPERIENCE:

He has over 26 years administrative work experience. He 15 a Member of the
Institute of Certified Public Secretaries of Kenya and the Institute of Human
Resource Management. He is responsible to the DVC (PAF) for administration,
| gencral management and planning in the University,

NAME: CS Rosemary MNpesa
YOR:
POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Registrar — Research Innovation &

Dutreach

QUALIFICATIONS: B.A (UoN), EMBA (JEUAT), ICPS-K

WORK EXPERIENCE:
She has over 28 years' experience in administration and management al

Urniversity level.
She is responsible to the DVC (RIO) for administration of rescarch and

community cutreach programmes.

NAME: CPA Nancy N. Muchai
YOBR: 1083
POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Chicf Finance Officer

QUALIFICATIONS: B Sc. Statistics (Maseno), MBA (Masena),
CPA-K, CSIA

WORK EXPERIENCE:
She has over 16 years' expenience in financial management in University finance

management system,

X1
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4. CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
On behalf of the University Coungil, it is my honour to present the
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30°

June 2022,
It has also been a year where we have turned our minds not only to the

next vear of transition and recovery after COVID-19 effects but also to
focus on the next five years through development of a new strategic
direction for our University for the period 2021-2026. Within the
contineed constrained  financial crcumstances, the University
maintained a momentum growth through resource mobilization and cost-
containment measures o keep the University afloat.

I am delighted that across the University the quality and reputation of our research has continued 1o
grow, Or research grants capture is a testament to the quality and significance of our role in offering
solutions in food security, health and fresh water ecosystem, The University continues to raise funds
competitively from both internal and external funding agencies, Currently, the University is
implementing twelve (12) projects funded by both in-country and external funding sources. One of
the key engoing research project is the Belgium funded JOOUST VLIR-IUC Project. During the year
under review, the University commissioned & Modem Molecular and Microbiology Laboratory to
help advance scientific research in the region. The laboratory was funded by the National Research
Fund (MEF) and will boost research in fresh water, human health and molecular microbiclogy. [t will
also allow students and researchers to conduct advanced cell research on plants and animals using
DMA and BEMA tests.

The University marked its celebration of the 9" graduation ceremony on the 22" April, 2022 ushering
the first cohort of postgraduates from the Afnica Centre of Excellence [T into the conlinental economy.
The event was conducted from the Main Campus in Bondo. In addition, the Univessity through the
Senate developed and reviewed a number of programs in a quest to make them not only market driven
but also to address the current conditions.

The University, guided by the Council, recast its strategic direction in a five -year plan that bas made
elaborate considerations of the dynamic competitive market as well as contemporary and emerging
issues in its operating environment and the global arena. As a hallmark of quality service, the
University was re-certified to 150 9001:2015 following a detailed Re-Certification Audit conducted

by the Kenya Bureau of Standards (KEBS).
The Council appreciates and recognizes the support fom the Government of Kenya for unfailingly
supporting our development and recurrent expenditures through capitation. | exiend my gratitude (o

Council members, all members of staff, studenis and stakeholders for their commitment, hard work
and support, which have been critical to our achievements over the past year.

e T _:24.
Prof. Shem 0. Wandiga; FRSC, D.5e. (he)
Chairman of Coancil

Xil
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5. REPORT OF THE VICE CHANCELLOR

I am pleased to present the Annual Report and Financial Statement for the
vear ended 30" June 2022,
It demonstrates the commitment and hard work of the University

commiunity which has led to the success m a wide range of activities, from
national and intemnational collaborations and partnerships, to valeed local
contributions. The period wvnder roview was charactenzed by
unprecedented challenges especially the highly resource constraned
environment. The success we achieved s due to the diligence and credence
of the entire University community.

THE 9® GRADUATION CEREMONY
One of the major milestones achieved in the year under review was holding the 9" Graduation

Ceremony that took place on 22™ Aprl 2022, A total of 2,351 graduands presented by the vanous
Schools were conferred with and awarded respective degrees, diplomas and certificates, respectively.
The event was officiated by Dr. Jonah Kangogo, the Acting. Chairman of Council a5 the Presiding
Chancellor. The event was graced by the Chief Guest, Mr. Patrick Ndambuki who represented the
CS8. Ministry of Education, Prof. George Magoha, In particular, the University conferred 46 PhD
degrees and 9 MSc deprees being the first cohort of students from the JOOUST INSEFOODS, the
Afrnica Centre of Excellence [L

TVET PROGRAMMES
To meet the need of the labour market, the University was accredited to offer 26 programs following

the approval by the TVET Authority. The programs will not only offer educational and career support
but also opportunitics for personal development. The objective of the new training programs is to
promote a sustainable, private sector-led, job-creating economic growth that shall coninbute to the
socio-economic development. Up to about 600 students are expected for registrabion in the vanous
accredited TVET programs in the University. Further, curnicula and occupational standards of the 26
accredited programs have been processed and delivered in readiness for September 2022 intake.

PARTNERSHIPS AND COLLABORATIONS

The University has enhanced collaboration with intemational parineérs, national and county
governments, communitics, industries, international organizations, peer instimutions and other
stakeholders towards meeting its core mandate of teaching, research and community outreach.

During the year under review, the University established partnerships with the vanous Institutions
and Organizations. The University entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MolTy with the
Kenya Medical Research Institute (KEMRI) aimed at developing medical and academic research,
joint programmes, consultancy, faculty development and training JOOUST signed a formal
agreement with three (3) Universities, namely; The University for Development Studies, Mot
University, and Egerton University o promote cooperation between the four mstirutions in higher
education and in academic research. The agreement provides the platform for enhanced collaboration

X1l
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between in the four (4) universities in three key areas of strengthening academic programs, developing
joint faculty and students’ capacity-building programs, as well as having joint research, innovation
and outreach programs.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOFMENT

The University entered into partnership with the Africa Center for Aguatic Research and Education
(ACARE} for cooperation in Fisherics and Agquatic Sciences research, training and outreach on the
African Crreat Lakes. Currently, the University s producing 15,000 fingerlings to [ocal farmers o
boost aquaculture production in the Lake Victoria Basin, The partnership therefore will enhance
contributions of JOOUST to national agenda of food and nutrition secunty. The University emerped
among the top ten Universities in Kenya in the global Alper-Doger Scientific Index (AD Scientific
Index). JOOUST was ranked position seven among the public universities in Kenya while having a
regional rank of 155 and a world rank of 4660. Consequently, the University was able (o emerge top
nine in the general imstitutions in Kenya, The University had over 24 publizshed scientsts among the
top 1000 in the AD Scientific Index.

JOOUST also partnered with the Silk Origin Limited through University-Industry parnership on
sericulture. Through this partnership, JOOUST hazs managed to develop green teg from Mulberry
leaves; the incubation process is being facilitated by Eenva Industrial Research and Development
Inztitute (KLIRDI). In addition 1o the green tea, the Umiversitly is in the process of developing other
products from the berries, which will inchede the Jam, Juice and wine

COMMUNITY OUTREACH & CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Druring the reporting perod, Giy-two (32) farmers from Kisumu and Siaya Counties were frained on

cricket farming for value addition, commercial farming of local chicken, black soldier fly rearing for
value gddition and cricket processing for valwe addition,

The University through the Africa Centre of Excellence in Use of Insects as Food and Feed
(INSEFOODS) participated in the 7 Agnictee exhibition and conference held from 15% to 1 7% June
2022 at KICC, A number of products ennched with cricket flour were exhibited creating an
opportunity for collaboration, networking, and marketing of the products,

TOOUST hosted the 8% Africalics PhD Academy between 13™ to 26™ June 2022 This postgraduate
internetional seminar was jointly sponsored by JOOUST, Afnica Centre for Technology Studies
(ACTS) and Africalics. The seminar held at Kenya School of Monetary Studies in Mairobs, brought
together 30 PhD students from across 10 countries: Kenya, Benin, Sencgal, South Africa, Migena,
Ethiopia, Ghana, Cote I'ivore, Uganda and Cameroon

The University continued to interact with stakeholders and the community in vanous programs. High
Schools from different counties visited the University for purposes of exposure. Similarly, other sister
umiversities visited the University for benchmarking, clearly demonstrating that the University has
become of age a5 a leader in academics, research and innovation.

Xy
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CAFPITAL PROJECTS
There has been noted progress in the capital projects. However, due to a number of challenges, the
projects are generally behind schedule. The projects have been facing inadequate and slow

disbursement of funds hence significantly affecting the progress and practical completion.

The University is expected to commission one of the flagship projects, the Research Hub: for Blug
Economy at Miyandhe Campus. It is envisaged that the facility will provide a platform for attracting
students and academics alike to work in a new and exciting environment.

These capital projects are geared towards positioning the University as global center of excellence
in teaching, research and outreach as well as being a leader in university education. The projects,
once completed will greatly enhance infrastructural facilities and additional space required by the
University to achieve its mandate.

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP

Overall, the financial resulis arising from the 2021,22 FY for Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of
Science and Technology has a well embedded and rigorous approach to its annual strategic and
financial planning process, with the overarching ambition of capitalizing on the resource used to
deliver our key strategic priorities and support student experience

The University was to able exercise its lduciary responsibility by optimizing the utilization of the
meagre resources. The University remains committed to responsible and prudent financial
management o ensure that the University™s ability to weather unforeseen financial shocks is upheld
in its operations,

Through careful and responsible stewardship, the University’s has once again maintaimed surdy
operating results and the net asset position has allowed us o continue to support JOOUST's faculty,
staff, and students despite facing a trying period, while confinuing to invest in the academic and
research priorities.

I would like to express our camnest appreciation 10 the Umiversity Council for the strong leadership
and oversight role that they play. My sincere gratitude to the entire University faculty, staff, students,
alumni, friends and all our stakeholders who contributed to the University's progress throughout the
period under review.

e
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Prof. Stephen G. Agong’, PhD, FAAS
Vice Chancellor/CEQ

v



_..__..H

anmapued £1-p1ans)

Jo-aaeg sty m yoeoadde S2EEE]D
(Jemziyd pus jenua) prgiy [ensiyd Buipuage spaay g sundas Humarea)
pardope Snslasiufy o), | Sw2pms jo laquunp VURPUANE S5T]) | @a0Eg o1 Aom) uapiBuan g
= EETTT T (ST
LAAL spum gasInoa 1 gA L fuuaggo
SIUAPIUS JO ISQUUIN | PIUTEIL [R5 JO 1gLiny 1oy Aaedes piing
£38IN00 — BOTNINEUI
LHAL 19130 o uouENpRaIR | paapo sawmefosd | Furago swerdosd
pRamaas sy Aussaan) gL LIALI0 J2qump | 2080130 nonens|Eay LAAL e Jaisiday
AR
gol aip m zagenpeid gmaie
& ANSIaaf) 2 AU P
sodas fpgs sasea] | Csaipnig Jeoed] jonpuc) | jo asuruuopad wopuopy | $pRaU Ansnpul 00T
satmFood spaau Hpnd Ao ol 000’3
[ULN[E JO daUeL)iad PRPUBLUZP 13BN Lodag ANSNPIT QEIjqRIES 0] EE_.“..__“”_.; - Eu:E:.“
Jogruow o padoppasp | Suuapgo g s1aquinu SAAPNIS J3sel ] % wodal | sHpnss saaey pue £aans “._aﬂﬂuj._“ = Euv.:wﬂ
puE £[00) £APYS 120R1] | JUIPNES UL FERAIN] | A3aINS AJCHIAAUL S[IIYS | Adojusaun AR IANDNND | A sidoul
AlrEnuue aunuerdosd AT[ENUWR AjEmEuE DILLEAPEIT _ A LI JanyJe
padofaasp azam sawnuesdosd | mau oms Jo Bwuaggo | padojaasp samwmiSoad SaunueIfon] man IRALRR | pUE palIpaIaan
MUISPRIE MAN] £ 7} 0 OSSPy panpaow am] | (7} wpamae pue dopas | pue do@aa 310
Buyujes | wopEanpy ApEnd
SHOLYOMNI
AINYWHOIH AL 8
SINTWIAIIHOY AdM L4 L0 G3LYA4XT SHLLIAILDY | FIDALVHLS | STALLDACAO

M0]3q [qEI Y1 UL UMOYS S8 I8 SIUL3AITYIR
2yt pue saeqd 018a0eAs ALY 9TOL/1T0T ueld NBawng pasiady s ugm saancalgo pur smipd MFaRas (§) aay sey AAojouysag pue
B2U2G Jo Ansiasiu edmpo) vEuE) doweief sasngaalge paunuapaad [smede asaeauojiad s A1003 WILRAOT [RUGTIEL 311 0 TUMUAIES B
‘JUSUYNE [RISURLL Y3 Ul Spnjaur 0] 1320 Fununosar aqy sarmbar 2107 Y9y wsmaFeuepy asueur] sgng A 1o () £ uonsesgng | § dongoag

LUITOT Ad HOA SAALLDATG0 OANTIWHALAATHL LSNIVIY HONVIWHOIHAd 40 INTWALVLS 9

TEOL ‘0f dung papua snad 2y sof SIEFRIIEIG JRIOWENLS puD HodRy tonti
dfopouyaap puy pouarag o dusseniury efaipn) efwidey ifommio e




AN

ddE 24 W paauRwa|dun AFagur
U feuEiy uonELILN Y pae Buissaooad dmssaond duissadoad
Jof eiod jEuonounyg MIEYS PAOURIUY | UGHEULNND PELOINY [ WORRIIES J)Nuninyg

‘paanpord

oo e pur 7oz (Rdy | saenperd juaados “Jead Jad wonenpesd wasAs
01 pROonpued UONenpen) PuE patijendy 13§00 UoEnpEn U0 15EI| 18 1ONPUD) | JUSLIRSUEYULD
‘AIIEIDALLL] A1 pue | ag001 1 e
Il SI2)EAS pue sjoo) Jo | Sugaeal Jo Aneng SIRIEAS AURINESY uonajdias
MATA] JOOLPUN 2MEINSEY ¥ uorsiaradns PUR S[00] 3OUBINSSE Alrendy | pue oonuaad
AnpEndy Jo a1RI0aane] S ], paauRgUy | paiepdn sjom jo oy Anpenb agupdn usfuans FauEyUH
"N A eacadde aog ANEIDATTN 3] J0 andopemeafoogpuay
padojasap yooqpuey e | Lapgisia paseaiau) Hmﬂﬂﬂ.ﬂnﬂ_ﬁﬂ Ansraamn dojaaag]
Ad
TT/1Z0T Burnp sawmire@or,]
W LS SnoLma o) SJuapms R Gl TH |
SEI'T pannupe Ansmamn uonaung Amsaaam)
ay 1, "Fuoduo ST sawelfond PanNUpE sEIpIs e v azipuoneiado | jo Sunayepy
AVISIZATNN JO Funaouepy | 10 JaqUimu Ul ismoln uonauny Funagrepy puEe EgEsy | uatFuang
SUOTEUIILIEXS
JO USHELSTUNUPE 30T[US pUs oI Foa
satdofupad aurjuo uo pauny 12P() U SIuapnIs PRUIRN IS | THCICH UE RIS dapeoe
J3EE KNIT] 0S| JBA0 | J0 IaqQUWInG paseaIau] SILBPRIN JO IJUWNK o] Ayoedes ping
. rueyiepd Sunoma
-3 21 ud saunuerfosd
Tesrod sy o1 papeopdn uLapied Sumgs) FLE e [[# 10] juauos Endip
FISINOD 7 [RUONIPPY | -2 uo SIUSPMIS JO 0N asmoa paprojdn Jo Burpeo|dn aoueyuy
waogie]d Suruseay (13a0)
Aurod =a 1o sawrerfoad apeagiuaspaday | ‘uusopwd Sonuesp-s unogpEd
=un £83300d nonepaiaay 10 Bunagrn UOEIparasy | sop uonEpasooe ainbay | Summar-a puw
gndiiey anuRsp ‘wado
nunsey Joj papiacad sdgm TIpMpae u Rurwma) puedxa pue
| &1L O IpispuBg [BUDBNIPDY | aSERIJUL [BUOIPPY IPIA PR paseass] [BmzA UApEUAng uapAvayg

IZ0F “0F 2unp papua Joad ayr 40y

STUXATNG NINDM pun Lodayy jenung
fEminuear wun s ae [ firciaaira nFuma n¥mSa 1 Fosen e



A%

TUALIAD [ASD

[eaEY aoodd

o) Sunyrw Axjod 1oy Apaedes
Almael pue suspngs do@aap
ob dorgsxin g digsamuagy
Avp 7 B paranpoog

Anqrgusta Apsiaanuy
PUE LONBADLIN

Aqenoe wmesodoie

VAT Yum digsiated EELLI e, wnisodurig pue pue ssaduoyy
Ul Agisadanugy sy DUUIPEIT 30UNYUT] | SSALEU0]) AJUIIG JO 0N AUFDE U0 i)
HOoW YHaam odxa |

PUE O PUE OHM 20 Ag
SFUNIPINE PUR S]a30104] 61
-PLAGT) JO 2OUTAIISQO T ]
TT/ITOT Wt popuadsng atam

SRUPATLT WIM| EInI-0

SAMIANSE WIN[NHLIAS
-0 UL SUSPMS
10 ANUELLOLE

PAAOALL SIUIPTIS JO 0N

[RINI[AD ‘EMOYS 1U3{E
PUR SEANS3] HiST
‘pumig ‘suods gEnosg
SAATIIT W [IEDLLITG
-00 UL SIS 3A]0AU]

sjuapnis
menprigisod o) pauBizse

ua3q ARy SIosiAkdng

paousyu anpdiasiy
pue ayet nonajdmon

SIITTAPT MAPEIE O]
PAYIERE SIUADNIS JO 0N

diyssmuat
0] 8JUAPME O] SI0STApE
SMpeIR (oY

puny

sueo] g9 pue spaty arel uonajduroa puny | AIESING PUE U0 AMOPUED

AImsIng §5300% 0] SIUAPIS W UOHEINP | ASESING PUR JUILIMOPLE ue azfenonesado
SNENIE] ANSIAINL ML, | OF $5330% pasEaiou] 10 SMMJIUIE O pus ysijqeisy

s | digstonefal - digssapra]

ISNO0rys eye diyssapea U BT slapea) Sunod pum FauRuian0d

U paanpil Siapex] Wapnls | % sapns paseau] | o Suuouapy ¥ Sutmea] apms pxddng

ETCTRTG I 1T

uoistaadns W} UONUAAT BTV
Fumnen jusasapun | ayes gonaduwes pue apenpasd jsod | o sewwesFosd spenpead SIUSPIS jO
EIOSIALRONS PUR SIUTWIRRY | LOTE3AI Paouryus U PALTET, JJEIS 0 0N wod po Fapnpuesns | Anananpoad
Suapnis enpeid | pue amyjam
Ad TTTOT 180d 10 saunumaSoad “fajeg
fuump suapnas aenpedisod ajet nonajdwos 3 suodas | yaegpeag pue di-mojjop ‘LU
052 pannupe fisioan) 3y | uonuaas paseanuy | uorstasadng fo saguiny | SJUPIYE A0UEGUT anaud]

FEOE o aunp papud s034 3] 10
SIHAEAIS IO pue poda)y jona
Adorouwaa 1 pun 22uAa¢ fo Aisaaun oSuen pfurdo (Soweanr



xIK

PezIEUOnERdD SIUAPIS puB 1jEls anua) uoddng pur IapS
uaag sey anuaD) Loddng pue LIS SUOREACULI uoRAGUU] ‘ARo[ougaa] PUE [FRIS
UOTEACI] “A30j0mgaa | S U1 JEEAIA] anuad g ], jeuoneadn a1} aryruonEadn wopdyg g
WLI0YALA 9YRT] Ul mARg § o
Uil PRIINPUOD 2l 5153)
Anpugenns Anpenb sagep (n
SN U0 Yoaeasar woddns 0] HA0 AL RNIEY AL m
O) ZTOT aung m JHN AG §211ATI2E |8 Tuatapdun SERUE MU
PAUCISSILILLOD K[[EIMI0 SEM sineds ey 0] S331A335 YI[eay saMAlag | UD SNOO] qitm
ArmriogeT ATo[0qOoUNIA | J0) 2URISTSSE JaAljap | L0 20URSISEE EIIULIR) \IEa] AnjEng) Joj | SAIMONIS pie
pue IEnsao S L | o Ansedes pasosdun Joj anua’) Eoonesedn anua) sziEuoneadn | sawueiFosd
AALBNEH0D satmuesdoad
pUE | armapese |8
"AMIOUOD3 AN U RS LOIE A DL Amouoag UOUEADUT | 07 UOIIRAGUL
FREIAA0 O] paZijeuniieiado PUE (2183531 J0f YIIEIESE AWOUOd3 3n|g anjg 10] anuay) areasal pUE YaIeasas
ST FIMTSU] [SQ0[0) ] saamn s pasosdun 10] nuaTy [eucmedn ) Az ruonsiado puedxy meidauy |
Kaumynsno) pue griuasay
SHOLVJIaNI
AINYWHOIHT g
SINTWIATIHOV AdN | LNdiNo giloadxd STLLIALLDY | AIDALVHLS | SEALLOACE0
"SYIOMIBU
‘paymodde jpumarneg HOHEIAOEEE OOIEID055E PR TOTIEID0SSE
puE pazieuonesdo a1 pasaisidal ay jo afmyom ag UL Y O SanlIALDe
Aoy WNY | SIUAPNIS Jo squungy | o paurodde 1331150 aug) JNBIIIE] PUR ISR
21 uonapduod gamueIdolg saureiFoadpms

Ad TTITOZ W PoIRATIOY

% UDIEINPA

APNIS JI0A, UL PAAJOAL

HECAL IO SJUaPTLE uu.m_n_

aunnerfoad ApriE yaop 0] $EA0IN PAERAIIL] SINSPNIS JO AN PUE UOMRIO[R A5WIIU]

ST AN WALILIAAGT) 1T ISNOOYS UOOT RS RO TS0

UL Ul PAasMAAL UOLIISUO) uoneRdo oows | 1SNIOOIVS PAaMaAy | LSN00TYS 0 saiaay
- CEAHSAIAIL] swwmifond | sawwmriosd saumgax

(£} aaaup im uatnaasse afueyoxa uo s LD Paa]0AT] SYTEPOLS samuerfond a¥usyoxa

{ (el ¢ paudis [SO000 | pue jEs jo sagompy 10 JJRIS JO TagLny pue Fuuren agen|ong

ZTOT E auny papus avad ay) 40,4
SIUFAIOLY FOIOUDU]S PUR Loday [PRunp
AFoTOWNIZ T DHD a2u 0 fo dissaren pf o niveso sfownane



wY

AT

JUN[ @9 0N | Ui
ALApEaY (Y SHTEFY
Uig ap psoy 1SN00T

ESALIIAIEAOLILL
pue sjesodosd m
afuiodes pasealou)

[¥LE 0o smapms

pum JJmE ajqradpajaoury

EUIPIGE pUe Jlels 20
Aoy} InM UDNRZINISUIS
PR SEIUDITME

[jaseasal azwedig

SRALE DRI panImgns “spesodoad UOLEAOULL
[re ut spesodosd sop spes pur padoasap sjesodond 1oy [ a0p S0 op Furpundsal pue
o1 papuodsar Aysmaiun ay g | siesodosd o asearou | sppea o) asuodsar Ajaun ], A]2ATDE ANCITIEOy ARopouyam
‘Bunum [Esodoad ‘goreassal | spesodond so)
meld puw sanunuoddo 1y enden | spes luRasjal
‘duipury sop paunugns pue Furm YaUEDSAL UO SJUapms FUNOSI o asuodsal
padojanap amm spesodoud sjesodoad esodord ayyioeg PUR JITI8 21180 uRLLNY 00 |
Blqepuny (£7) aaapf Awam] | ajgepung ol asearsuf | o) sdoqs-aip, qoreassy | o) sdogsyjiom szioedin uspsuang IABY
POUTRIIIEIN U3 SUY | J] U0 BIED 2]qea) InsIFay Aol
519550 (] WO Auastn uy puUe 3[qelIEAY 1255y ] paepdny 13858 4| UE WeIIE]s
sizatmaanbal £a1jog woTpE)durg Aanjod gy fuadoad
panus)dun s Aonog s aametjduioe: Aotjog aanaapg | (Eruaa)Eu juawa)du
JuTAT e il
duadord jrmaaaam uSfenEL SATAO]OUTa3)
JEUPI00T 01 paiurodde Al J0 UDELIpOnD panuindde .m__n__m.:u.wn
BEM JOIERIPIOGT. JT paaoaduy [AUTDsIag patpEnd)y | roimuipeood J1 wooddsyy Zudojanap
10 Apaedeny
SI3pE3] [Raeg
y@3nong gravasas
Fupum esodoad sl 0 BONEMIPIO0D yareasal YUEIsAL Ul SEPEI|
UG PRUTET] 2am 13I8y LLETRI b up Anaedes papuedxy | pe20] 2InuNU pUE Grex],
EXNTTRETT

ZZ0T '0E Aung papud o3k 2iji a0
STu O jorruelf pun wodeyr emwup
dfopewgaa r pun dawara¢ fo dusdanrw ofumn ofinfn 1Sowanr




X%

suuogyeyd o | uonEmwsSIp | o) paudie
pare Lropsodar Asrsanpy ‘ddwsiey ay ‘apsgam pun Suireys saallenIm
21 Yanory) paieuilassp UOIEUILASSTD | 58 oNs Bpa 3aeuia) e afpajmouy 110 pue
pue pazue|ndod Alunuos mding yaeasas pue sBopq yareasay | sop sunopepd | saunoesFoud
s1 sinding yaaeasay | Jgeaspapmouy | 10 sunejied papuedyy | szueindod pue dojassg] pundyg amearsu] |
_ YaRAIIn Ly A0
SHOLVIIAONI
AINYIWHOAH A §
SINAWIATI _._UM AN | SLNALNO Q3LOA4XH SALLIALLDY | ADALVHLS | STALLDAMG0
poua
AL WY1 WNEAS T g sHodal SapnpoLL
pazi[eronriado sea snpot JO noESTIIgNE ANpo s S euE e adres yreld
Taauafruew spuesd oy Alatun *Aauaraiga e (ruonerado ddd 30 250 sziundn
st pue siaalosd yoressas
(% 38euk o paufisse OLTELIS LU e anjjo
J30LJ () SIURID) PIAEIPIP SJURIE SANIITY | 20430 JueIny [Puoneiadp i e szpenonmadpn wHsAE
T TiL NEe) JUALEAT IR
walaSeueu puE 129 foad yaseasal 1aload
‘Aoenbape 1afoad yareasan ut uauaFeuew pxalosd JO UONURNSIULLpE yaIEagal
I0) pamaladl ANpacald | AL paseauu] 10] sapng seapny 1o] ampasoid matasy | uspSuang 7
TI0T qumdag
wogy sdiysmiogg a8py
U (J4d sag7e ([l 12aloug
AL “ETOT Yampy AT O g SUApNIS SpEnperFsod ‘ljoaEasaL
W1} BOISSTA] WRTRIALIO] agenpridsod jo 1B LRI spenperdicod aj
A1 FULMP PAUAY | JDCLING 1T ASEAIMN] Jo gs2008 papundxg sdmemjoyas ysqesy
PUR SIIPURL] WE0L] SE3tLred
i sanianae el play
ralong IN-AITA LSNOOH _

ECOT "F aunp papua 4oad ayi 404
SIH HNDIY FRLAOW] L Pun Lioda)f ponuu
Adoruusa 1 pup asuatae fo dncisaun ndumn sfunfn 1Sowmme



aanjnyias no diyseured
Ansnpup-Ansiaatun yinomnp
aunsuyed 1 pauunr

SpAaU LIUnmns
o EEauaAlsundeal

TR

Jajsuen pue

LEM [MXLLING
a1 1 aeafagm

PUE AJIUNLALOD AL
yoedun yeyg sansst pradog

urdug) §jis pue [S00- PasEaIIN] | G2IRasal uaLp soeduy 0 GAITSSAL ARN]

E200AE

Ayumiuan

i Sjuapnis

‘Aaenbape 10 pamaiaal PuR JjRIE IO

SEM A0 Iea1IN0 sjuanarlag YIEINTI) qaanno Anunummos | oonedianged

pue sdijsamae aq ] Yy souendoosy Alunoy ue £anog oo Aajod maotaay FOUTL g

“AT[RUOT BT

pum A[JE20] SIRLLLSE sindino yaueasag "RAOUSHAGM PUE SrewIs
| puE sdoysyiom yoeasal BTGTHEEi s B edogsqrom "Eaalialaj o Yoreasal
SNOLIEA PUINT O papey]ia] J0 UOHEUTILISETp pun spouaguod w |l eedionred o muapngs
2124 [JEIS JO SIQUIA LY paseasou] | wonsdpnued pasealou PUE JJEI5 S1E11[IJE
DK ¥ ZTOT Sunf L] B . SUDTLIGIYET PuR SMOUS
01 Y15 | WAL Play 20UIa g 1] SANIALSE Yoranno
PITE UOOIGIXD 39INIEY 11 _ SNGIYRD USALIP sjumdioned Buunp saongryxa
i w peredpiied 1 SNOOT | 1edun pue AiEnd Jo saquung paseaou) [ aenoeg o aedioneg
P EMOE PUR SSTR
6 1-Prac 2l 01 anp suonigryxa w sueapms | uado ‘sodya “suonigryya
PopIELInD FEAY SOONIGI|YS PRSI pue jjms Aq padejdsip | w o aredisnred o siuapms
PUE S04 Ul ﬂu.zﬂ_.m_wm_f SUONTADUUL AT0J spqnyea Sjendy puT jJElS 39EOn]
"potrad setunol
Aty uTia Sjeinol pamanasd srewnol pamaraas pagsaral/pamaladl
saod w suonengnd | saad w suonesygnd usiqnd o1 s1ayaieasa mzad ue suoiesgnd
86 PIAIYIR AUSIBATEN SUL | Jo Jaquinu paseassu] | jo Aysedes pasumyuy AfIE]oyas aounguy

“Fenurens adpajmomny 10 | sinding

| 12110 BUCIT OR8] Yareasal Jo

‘Epaau
maumdoanap
LRI TLFTVRY

EEOZ 0F auny papud S0l Fi] 404
S BIS JOINOHL] PUT LMOodAY [OnuN
AFOIUNIF F puR 32000 (o Ankiaan s nfwimn pfwdn 1Sammine



XX

‘1oalogg
I wyEalof] OIS0

EAIL A, pUE AT

A1antjap antatas eay
U0 JUSLILIBAGT) EIULUNGTY

nsry pue eFaweey

TOSIE] ANy g,

(—

FIUAIRINION [nJacead

ﬂ.ﬁ_m mu__“_ LATIOE PasmaiaLf

JO SAQUIAAI[AP M) AAIN[IE Of EMIATOE JO | BApN EHawEyey numsry WAL TSN P
szamued yus panfs snop ¢ | woneinsa)du wop WIS [RORN dugssauaed gsigeisg
“SUDEI] [EETE
pajqe Apualalig] pue opud OO J0 820w 0o
"UDIEINPT UL YIIRIS JO mn__.:mn_. Uy Al EIUNGTY 20|F IWOUoT
SaLuad T ystqersa o gy | semanae pauugpd jo waifay e i
i pusuleg 1§00 | vonmsswedu wief | gy s digseueg dryismred v ysigmsy
“BALION 51 SIPNIS [EIMnaLde 1Sal3) 1 VOO
10§ DLV 241 3Z1[un Lunosy JO SEAIE UD JUUILEIADD
0] JUAMILIZADD AJUND) BARS tptm digsiaused uoEuREapdun Aunod ARG itwm
1w [JOJA SALSIaATI 2L pauMpEUang | ol 10] WnpURILE gy diggramand e gsrjgqesyg
LT BP0 safeaur] |
annudi o) sdupssnaed diyarammnd pue sdigsiaued | saSeyur pue
101 samnpanard syl pamainal puE Yyaueasal sdngsraued o Buuaua | sdugsrauued
sdISImULIB] PUT UOTIEACUL] 10 O ERIPIO0D uo sapdiaud Iy euayaAanod ¥ [EREOLT S
‘YaiEasay JO A1RANIDATI] AL pasordur) puw Annjod Fopingy | yuaepdun poe dojasag asueyng 7
"R Um oD .
S il STONE[D [e1pI00
aunsu 0 sFunaaur npouad ALY “ERNILDT) UOSTEE]
1 padefiua asyrunuo D) ATILTILLILTO L AR aun jo sFunaam AYIITIAILGTY S 140)

SIRIAord aAnae 3w

UOTIPPE anjeA
10} Buissasosd 1ayaus pue
QORIPPE AN o) Julieal
Alf SRIPI0S Ham]q TR
[E20] JO SUTLIE] [BEUUII00
"UCHIIPPR aN[RA 10} SUTILIR
194ILED U0 PAITE 353M
FTIUNOT) BARIS DU MRS
oL sty (7] omi-Aygg

Ayt oo
2 o9 swn|o%

[Eoiforouy 23]
pasmEaI]

ATTUTILILD )
10 sjuamadeBus
ATTUNLLLLOD DAY

‘SIajsuRl) [EBorouyaay
puE s
J0 QUL I, IERITIA]

|

IZ0Z ‘0 2ungp papud doa ay) 10,4

ST WATRLS [T pun podayy jomp
imauwnar pun Fauanye i Ancsvisun nfumn nFuafo (Ko e



ATNX

paapdwos aram sFum] poe HAuipjing anua) ]
dunure ‘Vuumse)] ‘Sugooy patadwon jo asn Fuipping paajdwo’y | gaueasay g mepdwo;)
2501 1 pasajduod Fuippng . Ha0ld
SfI0M ¥00]q uonm ], | paiaqdnos ag jo 3 Auipping paajdmey | wonng sy sieiduio;
o = 2TUEY ) 2AELWI]) PUE
L1 ey Aunoas
POO} pue aminauge
MUALLANURLE 3UN0EA3
YA TOI] SpOm) [EINIER] SEAIR S
e s paddmbs sem juanidmba Burmo|[oj 2 Uy gaueasal
Aropeoqe ABojoigarny au Buisn sUApNS pannbor | uwoddns o) sauoreioge|
puE JEjnaajopy 2] PR ITELS 10 O8] 1awdinba jo op paziperaads dinbg

0D S |

i dngsiaue ] ydnong 80 M EETRTITETS 01 4q
pasnbar dn-ya1 ge’) 3Bwg | sa]2IgaA mal Jo o)) | [EUOHIPPY J0 ON | 193]) AlSI2AlU[] S5EaIoU]

TNt Lm...F._-_.— YT w0

PALOISSTUILOD A[ELILLJO SEA
Adoneaogqe] LFojogoaonpy
pue enaajopy paddinba qe] 24 9T ey Yals Aq qaIas
puRe pagsiingas Amau o] | Forsn sisapms jo on | o unusudinbg jo o | Asmeaoqe; miesy dinbg puE Suruen
paambae ‘nonwanp: EUAPIs
doysyaoy, Fuusamiug doysyiom ag doysyiom 1405 Aq dosyaom Anenb aumjwo
a1 oj wawdinby | Buisn suapmis jo ton | s unuswdinbg jo o FurasuFug ue dinbg uoddns o) | pue [easiyd
AI0jEI0qE ] T aumpnnseagu 00007
SRUMNNG poo pue aenbape | MEpOUILOIIE
Jeunaudy jo jeoyas au Qe ay qe] U405 A OE[ | PUR WIPOLE o Apoedes
10 135 UaQ SE NIaNNS Y | JUisn SIuapns Jo o | 2w usdinbg jo opg JrmynaUEy ue dinby apland] puedxy |
< Fupppng
dppede )y
SHOLYDIONI
AINYWHOIHAL 8
SINHWAAIIHOY AN LN4.LN0 a1LDBIXT SHILIALLDY | FIDALVHLS | STALLDArA0

LT0F '0F auny papud soad 2y 1o
SINPHAINS prraunuly pun Lodayy pnuup
dFojouwaa § pur dauaire fov dusiaarun eSuinn pfusn ifowoaer



LR

‘sndinn’y numsry un o)
Hursuarajuon oapia jo
ymamfo[dap ‘saouaor) wooz

LAranasumos 159]
papusdys atf wiody

sani|ve) ap sasndume)

QT INT UEf .”__mn:n:m
‘wonejuamafdu SaEAMNENS J0 tonEeaw|dun ClL Mgl
107 pasoadde pue padojasap Jo uonEuawadin sprodayy oo yodan pue aenfEss wary Forsugs
9T0T-1T0T W24 u,__mHE.__m 2023959 [enuuyy pue A0y oyuopy uawdu] | sspusanaage [BUOTIEN
[ pouad aq unpes saEmo) puse Aus1aaiu
digsiopea] pue souBLaADD AMEaE]]a J0) anoudun oy
papuane osE L2y ] ANIGEINOIIE | Juatad roe
‘nonEBusanu) pue npny sourwaAnd aeandios pue w
MMEUAN0 ‘uonudszd pneg U0 JUAUSFRERlY | Jusmad e SHURLDAOD)
U0 PaliTed s UIRT ey pauten sdoysypos | pue poune 1o0) Ansedes | ‘ssuswsacd a apeiodansy
PLFe [12URGT) JO S13aqUIapy SR JO 0N Hummen jo oy pimg Ajjenunecsy | aosdmy uatfiduang
“SADIAJSE aoRua IR |
pue aanuasaad pue
[[Emang s o 1annlojdap

Jo jEmaual dupnjout pasago Tuniauag Buapns ANATIULO.) PATEAEENT T TR
AIam S20LAI3E 1] Ay pue yeisjooN | L] papurdyz Jo (2427 | Anansauuos o] pusdyy
S L Jeviey

sndue;) nunsTy 23O PAIVADI snidwey

S 18 PRIWSUT JAAJSE mal v | o wory Sunijaag aneds aoygo pmesouar | mmsry e aceds avgjo

PUE PRIBACULL 313 SI00LL0) JEs jo op | pue papeiEdn jo unowsy MEaduy W apriddn
‘sdieD urew au

1w AeiogeT Buigaes | poe gaauds SHEIE aAnRISIINupE

Taaeasyy a) unjim sxonds anpo papiaord pilie Sluapess

0wl Yw papracad | sy wody Funijauag papiaosd 10} sanfiae] pue aseds

SA2AN JEEEE DIWARTY Jess jo oy | s=owds asipo o unowny anjo apenbape apiaod

Auiping P01 famagr]

PRASTYIR SATSTUL] | €] pajajdwos jo 250 Furpring paapduwo wpopy Aepdwony

paadwos 100 pug Hurping o HIOPH UOHELNS IRy

0 BUlfje ) PUE SO0 pUTQID pajeydwos jo asq) durpng pageidwo) Aapdwany

ZI0Z '0F unyp papua qval 3yl doq
SURHAIO]S JOIIUDNYF D LodR )] [oHudy

ARSI nEn uano o dAncraarn nSrmn AT T 1 Foiun ip e



LAY

12pUAT 00 9506

19 21005 B ([IIm - S3TSIAALUN
otpgnd Fuoun §§| payues

SR ANSIRAIINY S P0G T

Jo auneas u-_mnn__.E._n__ N EUEe
ANSI2AIUT 21 pUT palanpuoa
SEM A §TAOTOT 10
LOIEISPOJA PUE UONEN]REAT
pausumadue Lnp

EMA% FEADDL,] FUnannuey 21005 AIURLLIOTIE ] pRih Ly WNEAS Aunaenue)
FDOVULIORIS ] [enuLy 21 pasEatau] soueunopiad pamepd | OTIEULICTED ] 1) dim]
TOOL YN

ur ST Aq PRI
M asde JuaurF ey

Anpendy 5 Amssamp)
ST.L "HONEIIHE) (S0}
C L0 L0 D%] PAUIEIUIELL Aranap WSAS JUMUITEURA
sey ApsIanmmn af ] 31412 paacaduo uoneans paapdn Apeny yauqdu)
- wweuedap 2 1 xapm
awuny UOTIDE]SHES JIAW0En )
PUNOSELLIN] IS0 D 4{L 1940 UIRTE
PAOnpa AU 0] SUIASAS JUsaTeueLs
L0 SIS WAEAS W SUsISSIwpE
IMUCIET) OOISSILIPY SUIj-T0) SUapnas anorduy
alun auaunmdap
"R | PUNDIRLLEN] SRE0LETA A1 IR XIPUT UORIEJEIES
TT/VE0T 18 8B 241 L 5L Xapul paonpang/xXapur BRI S R T
NONINJETIRS TALIOISND [[RIBAG [Flalv il JETRE wasdg JBAD UNENE O] SuMEAE
] SUDIIINE SUOISKIUIP INOIET) JUILLEINI0L] SUT]-U() wawarnaasd aaordwry
PUE JUDWRINI0 ] “A0ueT] 2T QLRI TS ETVETTTR TR =TT
& 331A235 JO AJaaljap | PURCUELLIN JRUN0ISnD (FTJIEJSTIRS FAEMEnD
ul aANdAa pue L3031y paonpang/Napl i) 1340 uEyE
panosdul ey waxsis uolaRlEnEs wasAs Juamadeu | o) swsds juswafeue
ddd pamadaur man 3], JLeEn ) [BEIEL] DU =15y [e1uen anoddu)

TZOT g 2unp papuz avad 2y 104
SIMPTHAIUIY [TI2UDULY Pun Loday ppruup
ddorouyad | pur sauziae fo dnsdacn pSuima pSwSn 1Fowname



NAXY

‘Ad TTT0T TG

Ol P2a2inosino Ak S3DIATIR Slana] Anmoag Ruotssagord
h.,,._h____muum [etiaiEsagoL] Anmaas pasumyug AIUNSas pasnosing FUROSING OF ATIUTAG

= wonog

pauzwadun Fuiag 51 Aa1j04 surjd A1ages puonednaao | fizges % Eeonednaog
Ayges pue puonednoag | ssanpamdaid {pgeg [Epadagg szEuoneadg
JIATIAF RN anaapued g | ol rasuodsaa pun
“praosy Surpnjau asuodsa SIANRW stauparedaud Asualawa
AsuaBrowe uo pozpsuas | AJUNISS U0 SIUIPNLS PEINPUGS SA0IALIDE Ul SIUSPNIS puT
20am JJeIS JO SIaguaty PUE |JE15 pauLoju] WO EELISUIE J0 Op] s o foede ppng

Hanas

atp 0y podas v papogns

pure s10aloxd pre sureifoad s
| |IE padojiuow Apssaamgy ag |

Bunscymow waaya
PUE aAlaaLH

UONEN[EAS
pue Jurioguoiy
JO UDNEWLMY

sizafoad pue swmiFosd
JO UOnEN[RAS PUE
Tunogmow uIRusns

ETETRTTTE]

0] sEaanad ssaumsng

'AJTUITOT safErId ANSIZAIUR JO 4400

ul o406 S8 YA | sassaooad ssatisng i SEAUISNE PHPWONE w 10] Bunesdauf Aq

map] 3y jo uonmuasidu] | Asuaioyye paseaaou] pue pajsauiiuasy AEoInE daauidua-ay
Ad TTITOT 297

40011 1€ s5a0ud wonnjosa SIuTE[dumns 1odas ‘siureduroa jo

siuejduwoa ag payums v Furpuad pasnpay uoNN|osal SimduIey | WONR0SAT 1400] aImEug

AdLEOTOT
2] W SR AL SUNe

TTNT '0E 2ung papud aoxt 2y aod
SIHAWAIMS [0 UOHT] pun odey [pavuy
AROION NI F PUD 23UA0 fo Ancearn nfwimn nfu o 1o umane



HIAXYX

T-AUD-SUVE JO 20uE[laams
jpBojoiuapids ageam a1sem
pue jease) ‘fealojosas ag)

18 SO0 puE 0O0'000'0H SHX
Joaumng 241 1 B Y LN
|“__.._. =9n-m_....nn:_..u_.m_“ _.._“..F._mu_mﬂ.m
[PUBHIBA] 21 Aq papung

1] ﬁm__.—.E..._ AN [ VIS y
61 -OLADD FPIEMO] BaRuTo Ty
pARLS pue numsry woddng
(7 "supnsajul aAvuns

Tn_.._..__ u_..nu.__pu._”.n_. 4l ﬂ_ﬁ._.._u“:._._uu_uE.m
duiaq ame gaigam saulapmn
PUE SO0 G -FIA00
padojanap ANSIaAL AL 7|

G [-Pracs
T TXAIH0S 3] 1
AU S5US0E

S TERETE
P [OYEGTy UOTaATU]
JIWPUE] 6] -PIADD)

sugd
PUE S3F3R08 Slaanxy
&1 =P s

"TTOT FUNJ UL ATD SSIU]DAL
Jeis pUe 20T PAE- PUZ PRY
salyIsIaatufy oy aweiBod ]

dwsiouap vHddiA
11 FuLINp AURILIIADGE)

jo sapdismag pue sanpe o axupLaA0d pood
[EOONE K] UD pazIIsTs sassan0ad JuMMgpa JO SAN[EA PUR UOIEAYOD)
2134 JIEIS PUE SUMPMIS pue A3 FUILTASUTEL |R]305 [FUDEER] WIBALSUIE
“Hunuransumpy |
Auiqusi(] 10) uosiag

[0 B jo waunuoddy S2IANIT Funuransur
{11 aEngy Bng [FIUAMILIALLS
PUR [OUOI[Y WO 331N sassanond Juaoye puw Anfiqesip
Jo unmesp {1 e aung PUT 3ANIAT SunueAnsWIR (1208 ‘Japual uamapdug
[T U0 DAEIPLIDD SEAUIE 6, “FUILIEa N EUTEL
g (1 Fmpnjaun saoiag SO/ AIH
je1aadsg o sjeioaoast(] sasraoud wanmggs 3} ASNGE A0UTEGNS

A qAn0Y AUOP FEM S PuE ARl d TUIIRRSUIR (21205 ‘Fruap afeLRpun |

ZZ07 P§ Funy papus 1ok 3y 404

SINIMAIRIY PRIZNIELY Puw Jaoda)y penuny
Adofouyre | pup 20U fo Aesioany p3uipn 05w 3 idoweapr



XXX

{Aatjod
[EUOLRY 2ZILH0EN )
‘poziruonesado anueLaoglad A0 WAFEUR Y]
SEM 337 IO Juamafuepy ALaFeuew A21|04 SoURULIOY ] svmeunopiad s
aouEnLIOLIa] sadopdurg au), TS pasealau] g pocoaddy | e usmapdun ® dopaag
TE0T Aeniga g ut padogasap Sjo0g pury Hoogqpuey res
SEM [ENUBJY UOTIINPU] 1S PNEST 0 L2QUINE Ryoog puey pasosddy & anss) pue dojasag]
‘Siualsyaune pue diymuaguj
(0L Jauag 0] Sayenpeid Kanjod
11 puUe Sinos g1 g aueiLo] rad Souou 7 Fugoeos | Sunpoeos pue Eunojuam
pajleas alam mu.:_.___EE|_"_..Eu JIEIs pasuasan] JpUn jJe1s jo Jagumpy] aziEuoneiadn
SN SIjGRISD TLINIE QTS 1IWIR SOOI
‘pouad 2 Buunp pajowoad | geis o vonwznundp PRI JJES JO Op au aad se gms naaay Magadurng
axam 1JEIS JO sIaquepy JUAYEljqesa | puw pagienb
b *TTOT QUN[ JE 88 §EG RN ] s gy 1ad se dopasap pue

I POCKS JUSLUYSYQEIST HTIS

Bms 30 vonrznundg

paiojdapad s 30 o

Hes Aofdag] fezijeucuey | wmal oRmY

(LI0TJ0 01 "op) 10y

J8d puR |77 suone|naay
U ERUEpy 23O
UOISSIUIWIG ) #3IAJa [N
m Burpioooe pazipenoneiado
R 3NN T SO 00y
aouRmIopa] Ay

‘patue(d st pajuswspdun pue

ssan0oad

padojaasp asam A4 ZTAZ0L suwyd fomedionaed yFnosg
AGJ 1IENUCT) AOURLLIOLT] uonE g TR IO Ty LR Ead SIRIUND IOUBLLIOIIR]
PUE UE]J }I0A, PAEPIOSUO]) | UR]] Yioa %9 13dpng | op suepd jpop ‘sadpng pue suRjd 10 4
afpng penuny arf, Jo soustLogia, | [enuue paansddyy | ‘safpag [emune asedarg
| aLE
BAUSY UL

SIRD PASTQ-AWICY 5B [|am SE

ZI0Z ‘0F dung papus soxl ay) 404
SENAMAIDIG fORIUOUE Y pu LoodR) fomu

AFONUIF T DWD 23000 i Ancradren wiuman nfwFo 1 Fown e



AKX

"pouad 31 Fuump pamataal
alam saflreyo payejal pue aag

SHBIEYD PAIE|jad

TIRET TR pue 23] 3annadies
533] pageason] | sofuwyy 29, pamasasy | jusmapdu pue marasy
D13 B0J0EG ‘SyURg BUlph)Ful

SUOUNISU] |BIIMUL0 ) SUOLINHET vdg g
v sdiygsiaused sdigsaunsed ALY 1§ ed (zz/1Z02
[BESIJala) Paummume [EIsumI Ul sdiysrauued spquenaa wipng) g
£l _h.__n.ﬁhm._-n.. AL hu:ﬁ.numn_u pasmaIoaT) sdiysamred Jo oy puE (Rl e qunsg BPUAY | T RnD Y]
suejd yiom mmnny 2 JOEMDE | THOL TONTHG
w paznruenesado A3ans Aunsiia || Aq anuasal
UDEBZ[ GO 22053y uonEZIjIga Adanuas vonezy|gous sziundo Anssaamn

ARRITIUSE PaSEU D]

Adaiens paacaddy | aanosal azyjEuonmisd]) | pum uspmOsg | ASEIMN O],

UOEZ||G0y 23dn0say

SHOLYIIANI
ADINVYWHOAIHT S 5
SINIWIATIHOV AIM | LN4LNO J31D34X3 SALLIALLYY | FIDALVHLS | SHALLDAMG0
“satpoq
[euoessajoad annoadsaa
natp o digEiaguia
PRMT0D 0] pajell|toe]
SEIoa, JIELS [0 SIaqIEEaiLE
pAruonIppy saurdissip
SNOWRA Ul sasines uipping sautjdiasip uwaaga s
Aoeded puane o paELae) t ppms Jo ansdoEasp
202 T1RIS J0 SIMQUIA | aoaopyjiom joxadmon reuoszagosd pue Surmen
00E Ad TLITOT 3P Huung | puw apquafpapmony wodar Farma g, AN JEN[IE]
"BUTYRLL UOISIoap [eLadeumm
10) paredaad yodar pue
| paanpuod seam AJ1Z/0707 | Modal ssueuuopiad
| 1oy (esresdde ms enaay TS U0 X2pu] Loday (esieidds peg | pesmaddy e 1onpungy
TZOT ‘pE auny papua dnad ays 0.4

SPMATURIONS FOITLf pun oo ) o
Afopouyoap pup 33ua10¢ fo Ausidaru  oSuien pfuiin 1Sowvinr



ADUEIAA00) U0 PajUnd
FUILTED 221003 DOy S

B2 dn-pred
Pl BUien 38Mos woys

SUApMIS Pajunoue *sdoysyiom Suimiatuad
Jo jaguimu pasearsu] satmnuerdosd Jo op anuanal MEDI]
o HAurpuny
‘sadIeya palefal J0 523008
pajuadun uolaaqoa pue x3j annadmos mall L
safieya aa) asnnadinoy §2a] pasealau] s3f1RyDy oag pamaraay | wowmapdun pue maiaay | pue dojaasg

UISEH I3 A R

aify ul uononposd amynaenbe
TROUA O EIITICIE] [0

01 sBmpafuny pno's| pros
pue paanpoad Aysaaarep agg,

STIURART PRgRAIa]

Ra] sEnETg UK
Jo uotsmedya [emnd

3| SEIMSNE
funsixa Bueapduang

g1 oad
PUE S3[E5 a5Ea1IU]

Bunasrew u unsaau]

‘Fueans funeiual
Ao Buisiva
J0 sauennoriad asuequy

‘manpasd Ansisaoun

Jo ajes Furjmuapun pus
Auedwos g se pramsiiaz Anp
“reuoneiado st SYISNOOT

sanyoud
PUE S3|ES ISEAIN]

SALSNO0T
Joj uonsung S

‘w0 Funayew
B azijeunielado
pue gEiqeiss

"PoLE

o) FULMpP SIAmIs sy

Aq padojasap 213 sjesodosd
*[qvpuny £ [PUCHIppY

(N ZE P00 L' 251

SHY J0 w01 e o) dn saamaos
Aurpuny [euiagxa pue Lune
-t oG Aq papuny s1aalond
(T1) aajama atam azay] {1

UOTRR(0)
ANUIAZT PRFRAIA]

sesodoad papuny jo o

Butpury
10y spesodond yarmssa
nwgns pur dof@Easg

SHudia]

IT0E ‘0f aungp papua avad ay) 4o
WS jorrielf pun doday oy

AFMouNIZ T Pup 22u313¢ [0 dusidarun pfuimn efwifn fowninr




135"

"S1QAP JO TONaA[[0D
TR RETTTSY pun Furxoaut jdicosd
193p PUB aNUaAMNL Founsua £q WasAs
pouad 2 Bonmp peousyua J0 U UASeIEL WAsAs TR LAE TR AOUAA]
FBA BOTIDS[[02 [ R | panenuajdun paysigeisy FANDANS U YISy
UDHEZI N 30n0sal UenEIn
Juapnid uo pazmsuas paundsal juaprud pue
alash JFRIE JO S1a0qUrapy PRIDNpEGy SREATIOE sduaes 1803 uo jJEE jo
B1202 paonpay TDNRENEESS JO0 Of | UOHEZINSUIS SNONLITITD T
“siuauEdag SILAEAE spLmy 3o
ATWELL PUE [BUU] Ay Ag |QIIUOD JPNE (TSN | BRI pUm
ADUADN]I2 10] PaMIIADL 21DM pue "usiaanocad | JuswaFeun
SUINSAS [OIIU0D [BrLaju] sllFIEAs ‘Terauruy uawapdmy | m Aousiouga
. parEpddn uaatgyH swiasAs parepdn) PUE malaay ‘SEassy ASEAIIN]
SOONITSURT] 20URaNa TAauanma
ufauo) wo 28pat 01 £aUaLm ufitaiof ur papunj
udaing w papun) syasfood .._u._..q..__mu.mu FUOHORSUR)
YAIEIEAN I0] [UNOISE T 0p AUALIND uFa0] uf1aI0§ UD SPORIUGD

v sagesado Aysiaanm a1

EMO[J [SRa paseaiau]

ui saalosd papung jo ap

paes o), Suifpay dopy |

IPON ddd a1 sepun A

d LI Y1 Jopun TonRIapISHed
401 WANCOS O panfwgns
pue padojasap sem RLagTy
pue Yareassy ‘Fumpes |

® Ys1jgqmEa o) esodoad an]

spalosd gqq pue
HUIAZ] PAERAINU)

pangns
spesodoud J44 j0 oN

‘ddd #1

apun seaw dwgsiaugred
Ajqismay w0 Furpuny

1) spesodosd pmuqns
pue dofaaap ‘Apnuap)

1A PUE THNNTA

“WHno ° Auedwan

mem 0gaIs una)

rARIG [AWIpN] AT E3nIUsE
Jo Ajddng mmEns o sanouaiy
paiE]al pUE JUILLILIAAD)
ATURO) Y SEoeER
Burjros [EIp03 patTeEL
suI] Apsiaaiugy ag ],

ﬂ.u._..-_”EE.m
je1208 jo Apddns
WY 3§ pasTalol]

patjddns sarpuanmm
pue sdryssaueg jo ‘op

{Eped

‘Anaas *Lmnag)a
I1RM) EINIUMUT [RID0S
Jo Apddng jumstsuos

10} UAILIAADE [RUOTIEU
pue Ajuno ‘e g
dryseaued vapduans

Z0T '0F dung papus 402l ay) 4oy
SUWIIG Rl pun aoday vy
ABetouys ; pup 2auatrg o Ansianun pfuipn efwiln iSowoior



RN

[ suonEnaa Ag pannbal s
B0 pasodsTp aram S3[NTA A
papuecg ‘powad s Juuanp m

pasodsip sjusmanba )AL AP WOLY Fusuannbal 1o s5a3x3
J0 553003 U B1a85% ajp] ANUEIAST PISE AL g1asse pasodsigy jo oy U1 s1ssE (1o asodsi
SanlAIas )
Furreapy poddns o panmbae
SEA JUIIT FUTYSEM [UIE
amssaud s pouad ap wOEZI
Buunp uSELAPIN GONEZIIN Ajige|tear pue Sijigejieas
1294 J0 UONEZ[RUONEA | yodsmen paseasou) 1R [RECTIIPPR JO "ON yaay anoddu
<hTH
_Eu_._..__...__.___ﬂw Jo uanez|Enonel ‘ElRAE]E INLIASE
pue sagegaund jood Surpnjoue Jo nonzaydde juapnud
saliaens Jumna 1500 SZI[EL 0] SIINSEIAL
payuaiaydun Aynsaaamon ayg ANLIALL PASERIIN] SUIAISAS palEwoiny (eererdde 2oepd wong

ZE07 ‘BE aung papus svad dit 1o
SIHMUAIOIE [N BuLf pup Loday ponuup

AFOIONNIA T PR 32U fo dnsaaaiuny oFwmmo oFnEo ifowosor



Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Sclence and Technology
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2022,

7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and Technology (JOOUST) was granted a Charter on
13 February 2013, The University is governed by the University Council, appointed in accordance
with the University Act, 2012 and the enabling statutes. The University Council is responsible for the
governance of the University and is accountable to the stakeholders in ensuring that the University
complies with the laws and the highest standards of ethics and corporate governance. Accordingly,
the Council attaches high importance 10 goed corporate governance practices and has embraced the
intemationally developed principles and code of best practice of good corporate governance.

Council Size, Composition and Appointments
The constitution of Council is stipulated in the University Charter and the Universities Act No. 12 of

2012. The University Council is headed by the Chairman and is composed of Nine [9] members
inclusive of the Vice-Chancellor who is the only executive member. The constitution of the Council
takes into consideration requirements of the education sector, diversity of skills, academic
qualifications, gender, age and experience necessary to add value to the operations of the University.

Membership of the University Council

The Membership of the University Council is as follows:

a) The Chairman to the University Council appointed by the Cabinet Secretary in charge of
Education.

b) Five(5)independent Council members appointed by the Cabinet Secretary in charge of Education.

¢) The Viee Chancellor who is also the Secretary to the Council

d)} The Cabinet Secretary for the National Treasury or his altemate.

e) The Principal Secretary for State Department of University Education or his alternate.

Newly appointed members of Council are facilitated to undergo an induction process covering the
business of the University by availing relevant information and also taking them through structured
induction iraining.

A member of the University Council other than the Vice Chancellor shall normally hold effice for &
term of three years, upon expiry of which the member shall be eligible for re-appointment. No member
may be appointed to the Council for more than two consecutive terms. The profile of the current
University council members is provided in pages w - wii. The Cabinet Secretary may from time 1o
lime remove or replace a member of Council for a good cause. Vacancies may also arise in the Council
when a member resigns, at the expiry of 3 member's term or death while serving in office.

The University Charter and the Universities Act No 42 of 2012 has established the following organs

of governance:-
e The Council
e The Senate

# University Management Board

The University has continucd to implement effective corporate govemance by ensuning limely and
relevant disclosures as provided in the Public Finance Management (PFM) Act 2012, ensuring strong
audit procedures and audit independence, having ¢learly defined Council and Management duties and
responsibilities and ensuring compliance with relevant laws and ensuring the highest levels of

integrity at all levels in the University.

KNEIY
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Council Charter
The Charter of the Council is crucial to the University's govemance and defines the Council’s roles

and responsibilities zs well as fanctions and structures in & way that supports the members in carrying
out their strategic oversight function. The Charter provades guidance on the following:
- The separation of the roles, functions, responsibilities and powers of the Council &nd is
individual members
- MNomination, appointment, induction, on-going traming and performance evaluation of the
Council and 1ts commitiees
- Policies and practices of Council on corporate governance matters, Council members’
declarations and conflict of interest, conduct of Council and Council commitiee meetings
- Powers delegated to Council commitiees as well as matters reserved for final decigion making
and approval by the Council

Responsibility of the University Council
As stipulated in the Universities' Act No. 42 of 2012 and as amended in 2018, the Council performs

the following roles: -

(i} Employ staff;

{ii} Approve the statutes of the University and ensure they are published in the Kenya Gazette,

{11} Approve the policies of the University,

{1v) Approve the budget;

(v} Recommend for the appointment of the Vice-Chancellor, Deputy Vice-Chancellors and
principals of constituent colleges through a competitive process; and

{vi) Undertake other functions set out under the Act and JOOUST Charter.

Other functions and roles the Council performed include:

(i) Strategic Leadership: approving, monitoring, and guiding the implementation of the
University's Strategic plan.

(it} Performance Evaluation; Sciting performance targets and reviewing of the University's results
5045 1o ensure the achievement of the operational plans.

(iti) Integrity of Financial Reporting: Reviewing and monitoring controls, pelicies and procedures
put in place to ensure integrity in the University's accounting records and the financial
statements.

{iv) Risk Management and Compliance: Monitoring and reviewing the policies and procedures put
in place by the management to ensure that the various nisks facing the University are effectively
mitigated and various regulatory and legislative requirements are complied with,

{v) Stakeholders' Interest; Guiding the University so as to ensure the fulfilment of the interests of
various stakeholders besides reviewing and monitoring corporate governance and corporate
social responsibility practices at the University.

Activities of the Council
The Chairman and the Vice Chancellor worked closely in planning the annual program and agenda

for Council meetings. The meetings were structured to allow open discussions, All substantive agenda
items had comprehensive briefing documents which were circulated early in advance before the
meetings for members to study and be acquainted with beforehand. Besides regular Council meetings,
there were a number of other meetings to deal with specific matters. When Couneil members were
untble to attend a meeting, they were advised on the matters to be discussed and given the opportunity

to disouwss their wviews with the Chairman,
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Role of the Vice Chancellor
The Vice Chancellor who is an independent cx-officio member of the Council is responsible tor

leading and managing the work of the Council and ensuning that the decisions made were sound and
well informed. On the other hand, the CEQ was fully responsible to the Council for the day to day
running of the University. The CEO bears responsibility for all management actions and functions.
Furthermore, he performed his role as the administrative and academic head of the University.

Training & Induction and Performance

The Council members were trained regularly to ensure they were abreast with contemporary
management trends and also to be familiar with legal regime affecting Universities operations and
changes that emerge in legislation from time to time. The trainings provided to Council members
cover risk management, financial management, audit, ethics and governance. The Council members
were evaluated annually by SCPC on their performance and their performance was rated at 93%0.

Remuneration
The Council members are not entitled to salaries. The University covers the costs of travel and

subsistence of Council members while on official duty and & sitting allowance for meetings attended
as per the government guidelines. The Chairman is paid a monthly honorarium.

Risk Management

The Council is responsible for risk management and has an approved policy and procedure document
for risk management. The Council conducts risk assessment on a regular basis which informs the
internal audit plan. The identification and management of risk is a continuous process linked to the

achievernent of the University’s objectives.

University Council meetings
The meetings of the University Council were held every quarter in a caleadar year. In order w

facilitate the smooth running of its affairs, the University Council establishes such committees with
membership and with such terms of reference as it may deem fit. A calendar of University Council
and its committees is prepared before the beginning of each financial year. The Chairperson called
for meetings of the University Council after giving the requisite notice to all its members, Duning any
meeting, the Council members so present signed declaration of interest forms, in accordance with
governing statutes.

Committees of the Council
The code requires that Council has an Audit Committee and & maximum of three other commintees to

discharge the functions of Governance, technical matters, risk, strategy, compliance, human resources
and finance, The Council has the mandatory Audit Committee and two other committees to assist in
the discharge of the various mandates. Each Committee is headed by a member whose onentation,
training and professional skills are in the area. Each committee 15 serviced by the head of the
functional area in the University. The Committees derive their authority from the University Acts and
report to the full council. From time to time, there are special Commuttees established to discharge
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specific mandates on ad-hoc basis. The following are the committees of JOOUST Council that were

in place in the fnancial vear:

(i)  Audit, Risk and Govemance Commuttes

(ii} Finance, Administration and Human Resources Commitice
(iii} Technical, Academic, Rescarch and Projects Committes

The University Council nominates the Chairperson of each committee of the Council provided that in
the absence of the Chairperson of any committee, the members present and constifuting a quoram
may elect a person from among them to chair the meeting. The Chairperson of the Univessity Council
and the Vice Chancellor are ex-officio members of every committee of the Council.

Audit, Risk and Governance Committee

The Committee had an approved Audit Charter that spells out its responsibilities. The mandate of the
Aundit Committez is to provide oversight on.

(i} The integrity of the financial statements and disclosures of the University

{ii} The effectiveness of the intemal controls and accounting policies of the University.

{iii¥The effectiveness of the Internal Audit function of the University

The Committee has delegated authority and met on a quarterly basis. [t is composed of five members
one of whom is a registered and practicing accountant and a member of the Institute of Certified
Public Accountants of Kenva. It has authority to authorize investigations. The membership of the
Audit, Eisk and Governance Commitiee who served were:

Name of Committee Members
Mz, Janet Nagzimiyva Wekesa - Chalrperson

Audit, Risk and Governance M, 1]';-'[11:&]1 E;;Eﬂ M;imbarbﬂ
Committee | M5, Joyee hannge — Mem

CPA Dismas Opande Ogot — Member
Ma. Nelly Ako - Head of Internal Audit/Secretary i

Finance, Administration and Human Resources Committee

The Finance, Administration and Human Resources Committee was responsible for providing
oversight on mobilization and utilization of resources, financial reporting, staffing, salaries and terms
of service. In addition, the Committee considered and made recommendations to full Council on
University Policies. The membership of Finance, Administration and Human Resources Committee
who served were:

Mame of Committee Members
Mr. Ibrahim Mutembei - Chairperson
Mr. Zeth Ouma Omollo - hMember

Finance, Administration and Dr. Jonah Kangogo — Member

Human Resources Committee Mr. Micah Origa — Member

CPA Dismas Opande Ogot — member

Prof Stephen Agong ~ Vice ChancellorSecretary

Technical, Academic, Research and Projects Commitiee
The Technical Committee had a delegated authority from the Council and was responsible for
University's planning in the short-run, medium term and long-term. The Commitlee was responsible
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for providing oversight on infrastructure development, capital projects, major maintenance works,
and development of teaching, research and outreach programmes and setling prionties for the
Uiniversity. The membership of the Technical, Academic, Research and Projects Committee wha
served were:

Mame of Committee Members

Mr, £eth Ouma Omollo - Chairperson

Ms. Joyce Karinge - Member

Technical, Academic, Research Mr. Micah Origa — Mamber

and Projects Committee CPA Dismas Opande Ogot — Member

Ms. Janet Nasimiyu Wekesa -~ Member

Prof Stephen Agong — Viee Chancellor/Secretary

Meetings of Council and Committees of Council
The table below shows the membership and attendance of meetings of Council and its Commitlee
during the year,
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B. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Performance

Overview
The global outbreak of the coronavirus pandemic in 2020 negatively affected the operations of

many economies and livelihoods, The University's financial and operational performance was also
affected leading to a decline in internally generated revenue in FY 2020-2021. In 2021-2022 FY
the University, while recovering from the negative consequences of the pandemic, put in mitigating
measures to ensure that the academic and operational activities continued smoothly throughout of
the year. The University continued to offer quality education and research in different programmes
and activities. It has also continued to attract and retain highly qualified staft,

The University operated on a final budget of Kshs.[.99 billion comprising of Kshs.1.77 billion in
recurrent and Kshs.215 million in the capital component. Government geants form the biggest
source of revenue indicaling the reliance of the University to the government for continued
operations. In this regard, the University is planning to diversify its sources of revenue by secking
other interventions among them Private Public Partnership and other development partners. This
will expand the revenue base of the University as part of its sustainability strategy.

The 2017-2021 Collective Bargaining Agreement {CBA) has also been fully implemented and the
enhanced salaries are currentlv betng paid io emplovees, as per the signed UBA.

Revenue

During the year under review, the University raised a total of Kshs. 2,622M (2021: Kshs. 1,618M)
in income, comprised of Kshs. 2,063M {2021: Kshs. 1,298M) from Non-Exchange Transactions
and Kshs. 559M (2021: Kshs. 319M) from Exchange Transactions.

The revenues of the University have been as shown in mble [ and figure 1 below over the last

three vaars:
___T&He {: Three-year Revenue trend

Revenue 200972020 2020,2021 | 2021/2022

Kshs' 000 Kshs 000 Kshs 004
Non-Exchange 1,123,046 1,297,090 2,063,270
Transactions
Exchange Transactions 489 782 319 878 358,902
Total Revenue 1,612,828 1,617,868 2,622,172 |
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The University's revenee from non-exchange transactions, GeK and other donors, comprised

79% of the total revenue (2021: 80%, 2020; T0%5). This means that the University is heavily
dependent on external funding for its operations.

The decline in revenue from exchange transactions in the financial year 202002021 was mainly
due to the closure of the University during the year due to the COVID-19 pandemic but there was
an upward trend in the current following resumption of full academic programmes and refum io
normaley in the operations of the University.

Operating Expenditure
The total operating expenditure was Kshs, 2,493M (2021: Kshs. 1,6940M). The following table 2

and figure 2 indicate the expenditure trends over the last three years:

Table 2: Three-year Expenditure trend
Expenditure 2015/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022
Kshs 00 Kshs 000 Kshs"0iH)
| Employee costs | 033,042 1,275,662 1,197,728
Other costs 512,205 418,819 1,295,879
Total costs 1,545,247 1,604,481 2,493,298
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Employee costs comprised the largest proportion of operating expenditure in the last two financial
years, 2020 and 2021 at £7% and 75% respectively. In the curvent financial year, employee costs
constituted 48% of the total expenditure. The rise in non-payroll related expenditure was mainly
due to the costs related to the USAID Boresha Jamii Project. In the year 2021, other operating
expenditure were lower compared 1o the current year due to the lower level of activities as a result
of the closure and scaling down of operations of the University during the COVID-12 pandemic.

The dashboard below broadly illusiraies the financial performance of the University, The amounts
are reflected in millions.

Amounts in Eshs. Millions AS AT 30.06.22 AS AT 30.06.21
Kshs ‘M* Kshs “M’
Revenue: Non-Exchange Transaction 2.063 1,298
Revenue from Exchange Transaction 550 320
Total Hevenue 2,622 1,618
Total Expenditure 2,493 1,694
Dperating Surplus /{Deficit) 129 (76

The surplus is due to increase in tuition and related fees during the year as well as increased revenue
from research activities. The USAID Boresha Jamii project has also been included in the financial
statements; the project revenue of Eshs 799,100,600 has been recognized in the financial
performance for the year, Similarly, the increase in research activitics increased the expenditure for
the vear, leading to a rise of 47% as compared to the last financial year.
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Development Projects

The main projects under construction during the vear include the Tuition Block, Research Ceatre
and Admimstration Block. These projects are funded by the Government of Kenya through the
Ministry of Education. The University received Kshs, 215 million to facilitate the development

projects.

Amounts in Kshs. Millions As at MiiWZ2 As at 30.06.21
Kshs “M* Kshs *M”
Development Grants Received (Capitation) 115 145
Development Expenditure - Girants 215 145
Development Expenditure - A-I-A 35 74
Total Development Expenditure 250} 219

Emerging Issnes
The University continued 1o integrate contemporary and emerging issues and values into all

projects, programs, and activities during the 202172022 FY in order to promote hifelong learning
and infuse new knowledge in the provision of quality education, research, and community cutreach.
To eamestly contribute to the building of a just and eohesive society as envisaged in Vision 2030,
the University has developed a framework to address different forms of socio-economic challenges
owing to the legal, technological, social cultural and economic dynamics in the society. Some of |
the major issues included developing responses to the Covid-19 pandemic. As a result, the |
University has incorporated blended, remote teaching and on-line leaming to ensure continuity of
the University’s academic activitics. Emerging issues in the operational environment which the
University is responding to going forward include: sustainable funding for university education in
the face of reduced funding from the Government; guality access and relevance of university
education and acsdemic programmes; automation of processes, strong linkages with industry and
restructuring of human resource, establishment of stronger partnerships and collaborations. Duning
the year, the University implemented the USAID funded Boresha Jamii Project, one of the
initiatives to positively impact the community through the provision of various medical services.

Major Risks/Challenges that the University is facing

The University faces a number of challenges that include the funding gaps in terms of both the
government grants and research grants. This has led to a major deficit in budget implementation
especially in arcas of staff remuncration and facilitation of completion of capital projects, which
has led to high pending bills and a stowdown in the completion rate for capital projects. Approved
research projects have also missed funding from both the government and other development
partners.

In addition, the University 1s facing @ risk from the reduction in the number of self-sponsored
students admitted to the University due a decreased pool of the self-sponsored students. The
decrease in the number of admissions of this cohort of students has resulted in reduction in
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anticipated wition fees, thus resulting in financial challenges. There is also inadequate capacity to
adopt and blend science and innovations in the sector.

: The Big-4-Agenda

The University is positioned right in the centre of Government critical growth pillars anchored on
the Big-4-Agenda blucprint (food security, affordable healthcare, affordable housing and
manufacturing). The University has clearly demonstrated its critical role in addressing these four
pillars in the activities camed out in 2021/2022FY. The World Bank funded African Centre of
Excellence has immensely contributed to the food security initiative espoused in the Big-4-Agenda.
The Centre is conducting various research activities and building capacity on food security in
collaboration with various stakeholders particularly the community with goal of meeting the bigger
challenge of food insecunty in the country and region.

The University, through the School of Health Sciences plays a entical role in building capacity on
health management systems. The University was primed as the recipient of USAID for
implementation of various projects that enhances healtheare reach in the four counties of Kisumu,
Kakamega, Vihiga and Nyvamira. As a Science and Technology University, the establishment of
School of Engineering and Technology has enabled the University to support capacity building in |
the manufaciuring Sector in the Country. With the intended establishment of a Dry Port in Kisumu,
Standard Gauge Railway system and Marine Teansport in Lake Victoria by the Government, the |
University must leverage itself to support the new grand infrastructural developments and industries |
in the region with supply of skilled work force, capacity building and consultancy services. Schoaol |
of spatial planning is tailored fo address affordable housing agenda of the National government,

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Academic Programmes

L. 9% Graduation Ceremony-Yirtual

The University held the 9 Graduation ceremony in a virual/blended manner. During the ceremony
on 22 April 2022 a total of 2,351 studeats were conferred degrees and diploma in their respective
disciplines. The ceremony was graced by the Chairman and Members of the University Couneil.
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ii. Physical teaching and Learning through the Centre for E-Learning & Online

Teaching
The University conducted its teaching through an integrated system of both physical teaching and

on-line platforms which was enhanced by the Centre for E-Leaming. The Centre developed a
guidelines for an Open and Distance Electronic Leamimg (oDel) and requirements for Online
| Examinations, which were approved by Senate. The e-leaming and online support to students has
| continued as a means of adapting to the new delivery of learning as well as dug to interruption by
the COVID-19 related closure. Currently, students and faculty are enrolled on the e-leaming

platform and have participated in various activities orgamized by the CfEL.

Further, the Board of Postgraduate Studies continued to hold online theses defenses and going
forward, more online theses defences are planned towards enhancing student completion rates. The
University programmes were conducted in a blended manner in adherence o Covid 19 containment
measure. This happened throughout the financial year Examinations were successfully
administered to students online and where necessary they appeared physically 1o wnte
examinations.

The library continues o serve the academic community physically and virtually through the
EZProxy for which the University subscribes annually. The EZProxy facilitates the academic

community to access e-resources in real time off campus.

iii) Short course training
The Umiversity through the Division has been accredited to offer 26 of the 30 Senate approved

TVET programs. Up to about 600 students are expected for registration in the various aceredited
TVET programs in the University. Further, curriculums and occupational standards of the 26
accredited programs have been processed and delivered in readiness for September 2022 intake.

iv ) Research and Development
The University continues to raise funds through proposal wnting and submitting these to both

internal and external funding agencies. Cumently, the University 15 implementing twelve (12)
projects funded by both incountry and external funding sources up o a total of KES
152,710.054.42. The key on-going research project is the Belgium funded JOOUST VLIR-IUC |

Project.

al Commissioning of the Molecular and Microbivlogy Laboratory
The newly refurbished and equipped Molecular and Microbiology Laboratory was officially
commissioned on 20" June, 2022 by the PS, State Department for University Education and
Research Amb. Simon Mabukwesi.

The Laboratory has been refurbished and equipped by the NRF-Kenya at a cost of KES 33 500,000

through the Institutional Infrastructure Support Grant. To be used for diagnostic and research work,
appropriate chemical reagentz will need to be procured. In addition staff (technical and those

| intending 1o use the kabs), will need 1o be trained in molecular work.

xliv



Jaramogi Oginga Odinge University of Science and Technology
Annual Report and Financiol Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022

b JOOUST FLIR-IUC Project
Phase 1 proposal of the JOOUST VLIR-IUC Project was finalized and submitted to VLIR-UOS
Burean on 28th Aprnl, 2022, The project proposal consequently approved for Phase |
implementation for 5 years commencing from 15t September, 2022 up to 31t August, 2027, The |
project is funded by Belgian Govemment through the Flemish Inter University Council —
Institutional University Corporation at a cost of € 600,000 annually for 10 years.

The Project has held joint activities with partners from Flanders and Kenya during the Formulation
Mission from 7th to 12th March 2022

:J Ewa .!".u' w&merr.t q,l' Msect repository
The Center in collaboration with the National Museum of Kenya finalized the establishment of
Insect Repository at JOOUST. The team from NMK delivered the insects which had been
collected and preserved at NMK and further tramned JOOUST team on how 1o manage the

FEpOSIlOry.

dy COVID-19 Containment Project
The University made a deliberate move to mobilize resource to support Kisumu and Siaya Counties
towards COVID-19 containment. The Project is funded by the Mabonal Research Foundation of
South Africa to the wne of KES 10,000,000 and looks at the serological, faecal and waste water
epidemiological surveillance of SARS-CoV-2 as well as home-based care in Kenya. Preliminary
results have been published in peer reviewed journal and policy brief and being prepared for sharing

with the baro counties.

v} Collaborations and Partoerships
The University has entered info parmership with:

a) Africa Center for Aquatic Rezearch and Education (ACARE)
IOOUST has entered into strategic partnership with Africa Center for Aquatic Research and
Education (ACARE) for cooperation in Fisheries and Aquatic Sciences ressarch, training and
outreach on the African Great Lakes signed 24™ June, 2022. Currently, the University is producing
15,000 fingerlings to local farmers to boost aquaculture production in the Lake Victoria Basin. The
partnership therefore will enhance contributions of JOOUST w national agenda of food and

OLLrOn Securily.
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A group phete affer JOIUST signs an .'I-i"n[-"m'r.ﬁ Africa l‘.'-':r:r_.l'i:-" Aquatic Besearch and Edwcation

by Silk Origin Limited
JOOUST and Silk Origin Limited is parmering through University-Industry partnership on
sericulture, Through this partnership, JOOUST have managed to develop green tea from Mulberry
| leaves; the incubation process i5 being facilitated by Kenya Industrial Research and Development
Institute (KIRDI). In addition to the green tea, the University is in the process of developing other
products from the bernies, which will include the Jam, Juice and wine.

o) JOQUSTACTS/AFRICALICS
JOOUST hosted the 8% Africalics PhD Academy between 13® w 26™ June 2022, This
postgraduate international seminar was jointly sponsored by JOOUST, Afnca Centre [or
Technology Studies (ACTS) and Africalics

The theme of the seminar was “Transtormative Innovaton and the 4ih Industrial Bevolution (41R )
for Sustainable Development Programme™

The seminar held at Kenva School of Monetary Studies in Nairobi, brought together 30 PhD
students from across 10 countries: Kenya, Benin, Senegal, South Afica, Nigeria, Ethiopia, Ghana,
Cote [Y'ivore, Uiganda and Cameroon.

d) Kenya Medical Research Institute
An MOU with Kenya Medical Research Institute (KEMRI) has been finalized and signed aimed at
developing medical and academic research, joint programmes, consultancy, faculty development
and training.

gl Universiny of Development Studies, Ghana

 The Vice-Chancellor, INSEFOODS Director, and Project Investigator (PI) visited the University
of Development Studies, Ghana from 25™ to 30 May 2022. During the visit, JOOUST signed a
formal agreement with three (3) Universities; The Univessity for Development Studies, Mo
University, and Egerton University to promote cooperation between the four institutions in higher
education and in academic research. The apreement provides the platform for enhanced
collaboration between i the four (4) universities. The agreement broadly seeks to explore
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! cooperation in three key areas such as strengthening academic programs, developing joint faculty
| and students’ capacity-building programs, as well as having joint research, innovation and outreach
progrms.

The signing of the tripartite collaborative agreement in Crhana

i) Community Extension Services

a) Training of farmer
During the period under review, fifty-two (52) farmers from Kisumu and Siaya Counties were
trained on ericket farming for value addition, commercial farming of local chicken, black soldier

fly rearing for value addition and cricket processing for value addition.

b} Participation in Exhibition
JOOUST participated in the T" Agrictec exhibition and conference held from 15% to 17" June 2022
at KICC. The JOOUST through INSEFOODS exhibited a number of products enniched with cricket
flour. The exhibition created the opportunity for collaboration, networking, and marketing of the
products,

STUDENTS' AFFAIRS

Students were engaged in sports aclivities through the Kenya Universities Sports Association
{KLISA) orgamized sporting events in the University and in other universities in the western
region, The sports teams competed in Maseno, Kibabii, Kabianga, Masinde Muliro, Rongo and
Kisii Universities, Three members of the Student Governing Council (SGC) of SATOOUST
attended training workshops at the Kenya School of Government {K50G) and Ethics and
Anticorruption Commission (EACC). They were trained on Voter Elections and Peaceful
Elections by the two institutions respectively.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND ADMINISTRATION

To bolster the human resource capacity, the University recrunted eleven (11) members of staff
including a professor and systems auditor, On the same breath seventeen (1 7) interns were engaged
and ote hundred and fourtzen (114) students benefited from the attachmenl opportunities against a
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planned target of one hundred (100}, Four members of staff were promoted during the period as far
as motivation of staff is concemed, However, during the period, the University unfortunately lost a
few members of staff through demise in service (1), resignation (5), retirement (3) and contract
gxpiry (4}, At the end of the financial year the University stafT portfolio stood al five hundred and

thirty-eight (534),

On training, the University managed to support a number of staff as part of competency
development programme following a comprehensive training need assessment cxercise. Six
hundred and ninety-five (695) staff members benefited from various trainings at different limes
over the vear. Some of the key traming included: Frawd prevention; Forensic audit and
investigation; 2021 values and principles compliance evaluation process; Customer care skills
development course; Public policy mentorship seminar; High level workshop on research &
mnovahon commercializaton and sustamability of research centers & institutions of higher
learming; Risk champions and management training workshop; 130 9001:2015 refresher training
among others. To ensure members of stalf are in good standing within their professions, the
umiversity supported members of stafl totalling thirty-four (34) with subscription payments with
the relevant professional bodies.

The University ensured that Staff Welfare matters were addressed as appropriate including,
provision of stafT uniforms, Group life insurance, comprehensive medical insurance and continious
sensitization of staff on guidelines and protocols as per the govermment directives and in line with
the WHO requirements,

Information Communication & Techaology (1CT)

As an coabler of efficiency in service delivery, in 2021/2022 the University continued to strengthen
its automation of processes through robust investments in ICT. The key measures incloded: -
Implementation of new fully integrated ERP system (30%); Bank integration with ERF; Rencwal
of Zoom licenses; Upgrading Wi-Fi and LAN coverage at the Main Campus; Deployment of a new
Firewall; Increasing the internet bandwidth- Kisumu Campus giving university total of T15 mbps;
Renewal of antivirus software; Installation of a server room at Kisumu campus; Deployment of
video conferencing facility in Kisumu Campus; Preventive maintenance and; Procurement of ICT
fems.

Repairs and Mainfenance

The University Admimistration continued to carry out cleaning, repair and maintenance works of
all facilities as part of s routine t maintain a conducive physical environment for learning, Some
key activities include refurbishment of Staff houses, Research and Teaching Laboratory,
Auditorium and Bondo Hostel. The University also ensured uninterrupted electricity supply and
carried out a number of improvements (o enhance lighting including: - providing external and
Internal lighting in Bondo Hostel; Installation of lighting arrestors at SAFS, engaging in power |
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factor correction process and u.pgmdiné of power lines to three phase. The water supply was stable
throughout the wear as well as ensuring all needed plumbing and painting maintenance works were
done as requested, A dairy unit for SAFS, was also constructed at Siaya campas. Transport & Plant
department ensured fleet of vehicles; plant & equipment were in optimal working conditions
throughout the financial year. Servicing and maintenance of velicles was up to date including
fuelling, annual inspection and renewal of msurance cover. The University also purchased Lawn
Muower, Car Pressure Washing Machine and was gifted a new single cab by Safaricom for being an
exemplary customer. The process of disposal of boarded vehicles was also pursued in eamest as
well

Key Projects and Investment Decisions the University is Planning/Implementing

There has been notable progress in the Capital Projects, however due to a number of challenges,
key of which is the impact of Covid-19 pandemic; the projects are generally behind schedule. The
three new projects, once complete, will greatly enhance infrastructural facilities and additional
space required by the University to achieve its mandate. Pictorial impressions of the final completed
projects, alongside the current project status are listed here below.
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Material areas in Statutorv/Financial Oblizgations

The University did not have material arrears in pending bills or statutory obligations as at the end
of the financial year

The University's financial probity and serious governance issues

The University ensures a strict following of the code of ethics that is based on integrity,
professionalism and honesty, in the management of the University's financial resources,
procurement and bevond the legal requirements.
The University has put in place measures to promote financial probity. Thege include:
i} The University Council, Management and Staff act ethically at all times in accordance with |
the Public Officers” Code of Conduct as set out in the governing statutes. |
1}y Officers do not make improper use of their positions.
1} Officers avoid placing themselves in a position where is potential for claims of biasness.
iv) The University does not seek to benefit from stakeholder practices that may be dishonest,
vnethical or unsofe
vl Conflicts of interest are managed appropriately
vi} All stakeholders are treated Faicly and equitably

The University has put in place govemance structures to ensure that any exposures are addressed
promptiy.

There were no reporied financial improbity 1ssues reported by esther internal or extemnal parties
during the year,

8. ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

through offering practical and market oriented courses and programumes. Towards this end, the
university has continually realigned her strategies in response to changing and emerging trends in
the environment. In order to achieve this, the university has developed various strategies with the
students, who are her main customers in focus through the methodology of delivery of leaming
which has metamorphosed to include hlended virtual/e-leaming with physical contact.
i) Sustainability stratery and profile
Taking cognizant of the complexity of the social-¢conomic operating environment, the University
has developed and embedded robust mechamsms and actionable plans to meet her mandate,
Through the TVET authornity, the University has obtained approval from which the university
expeets about 600 students for the September 2022 intake. Further, through constant engagements
with internal partners, national and county governments, the community, local industries &
international organizations, peer institutions and stakeholders, the University is poised to provide
cutting edge teaching and research in order to provide sustamable solutions to perennial
challenges. In addition, the university being a beacon of excellence welcomes interaction with
high schools for purpeses of enhancing exposure to students and also being visited by various
universitics for benchmarking. |
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i} Environmental performance

The Universily is committed to providing a safe and conducive work place, protecting the
environment, and conserving energy by use of renewable over non-renewable encrgy and natural
resources by reusing and recycling matetials, purchasing recycled materials, and using recyclable
packaging and other matenals where necessary and as approprate.

Further, the university ensures that it minimizes waste; prevent air, water, and other pollution, as
well as disposal of waste safely and responsibly. As regards the communities where the university
operates, JOOUST will act promptly and responsibly to correct incidents and/or conditions that
endanger health, safety, and/or the environment.

Being a learning institution, the university will stive to provide leadership  in Scientific,
technological and innovation efforts to improve environmental protection and understanding.

To ensure that the momentum of good environmenial practices is mantained, the university
periodically conducts  detailed  audits and self-assessments on environmental policy adherence
and implementation in order to make any comective measures as appropriate,

fii} Emplovee wellare
The University has a recruitment pohicy that provides guidelines for ensunng a transparent and

fair hiring process that assists the University in selecting the right candidate on the basis of ment
and relevance to the job. This policy is in compliznce with Constitution of Kenya 2010, Public
Service Commission, the SRC and The Employment Act 2007.

The university conducts training needs assessment 1o evaluate the skills gap of the employees in
the university and organizes for their training by providing the necessary resources. This is meant
to attract and retain high calibre staff to help in exccuting the mandaie of the University.

Further and in compliance with the public service commission code, the university employees are
appraised against agreed upon set targets. The performance appraisal is an on-going process thal
links performance to organizational objectives, professional development and training as well as
reward systems.

The University adheres to the Occupational Safety and Health (OSHA) Act 2007 by ensuring a
secure, safe, health and welfare of all employess at work as well as protecting persons other than
persons at work against risks to safery and health arising out of, or in connection with, the activities
of persons at work.

iv)  Market place practices-
a) Responsible competition practice.
The University executes its mandate with its customers in a fair professional, transparent and
accountable manner, To ensure this is achieved the university has an cthics and integrity policy
which establishes the ethical principles and conduet of its workers, The University 1s apolitical and
serves all without discrimination.

T
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b) Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations
Suppliers of the university are major stakeholders. They ensure timely provision of goods and
services for smooth operations. The university being a public entity and in an effort to adhere to the
law on procurement follows the public procurement and asset disposal (FFAD) act 20135,
The University honours all the contracts it signs with its contractors and payments for services
provided are paid as per agreement between parties on signing the contract.

¢) Responsible marketing and advertisement
The University uses online and print media to reach the public and stakeholders. Through online
means, the umiversity uses its website and social media platforms such as whatsApp, btwitter,
Linkedin and face hook etc for marketing, advertisements and communication.
In the print media, the University makes advertisement through the Government Advertisement |
Agency (GAA) which regulates advertisement from all govemment entities.

d) Product stewardship
JOOUST is committed to providing quality umiversity education through tradning research and
community outreach. In order to achieve this, the University has drawn & outlined a broad and
robust service charter. It is the desire of the University to implement the charter fully to ensure
continued success.

v} Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

a) Inscct Rearing
The Division of Research Innovation and Outreach (RI0) conducted a 3-day Community Extension
Service by training local farmers from Siaya County on insect rearing for human food and animal

feeds as an alternative source of livelihood
The training conducted at the INSEFOODS demonstration farm at the main campus saw 30 farmers

imparted with the much-needed knowledge on modern insect farming methods, innovation, and
technology employved to ensure farmers enjoy high vields from such venhures.

While officially opening the training, the Deputy Vice-Chancellor, Prof. Benson Estambale in his
remarks encouraged farmers to take the training seriously and make a deliberate decision of putting
into practice lessons learnt from the training to improve their livelihood and that of the community
at large. He also emphasized the role of the University in outreach activities as part of its mandate
in Corporate Social Responsibility o disseminate research findings and impart the local community
with knowledge and research output

The farmers were also taken through the University Service Charter, a document that outlines the |
services offered at the university and their timelines; Complaints handling procedure as part of the '
awarenéss creation by the department of Corporate Communications,

The farmers were not only given certificates after training but also provided with hand wash
detergents and sanitizers to help in reducing the chances of contracting the COVID-19 Virus.

lind
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b} JOOUST Charity Club visits Good Samaritan Children’s Home in Migori County

The University Charity Club paid a visit to the Good Samaritan Children's Home in Migon town
in a bid to give back to society. The club members had time to wash clothes, cool, clean, plant trees
and spend quality time with the children, caregivers and staff.

In his speech during the fun filled event, Charity Club Chatrman, Mr. Brian Sifuna urged the society
in general to give a shoulder to lean on to the vulnerable children in the society. He also thanked
the members for making the day a success.

Meanwhile, the Home Director of the Children’s home, Mr. Godlrey Otieno thanked the club
members [or finding time within their busy schedule to spend time with the children. He further
revealed that they have not been getting enough support, and urged well-wishers and donors to be
the pillar for all orphans and help the children live comfortably despite the high costs of living in
the country.

JOOUST Charity Club was established in the year 2017. It has a total membership of over 62
members from all denominations. The Club’s activities involve helping the poor in society, cleaning
the environment, planting trees and visiting the sick i hospitals. The patron of the club is the
Deputy Vice- chancellor Academic Affairs, Professor Joseph Bosire.

Tiw
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10. REPORT OF THE COUNCIL

The University Council submit their report together with the financial statements for the year ended

June 30, 2022, which show the state of the University s affairs.

i} Principal activities

The principal activitics of the University continue o be to offer high quality university training, carry
out innovative research and community outreach for sustainable socio-economic development.

iil Results

The results of the University for the year ended June 30, 2022, are set out on page 1.

iii) MMembers of Council
The members of Council who served during the year are shown on pages vi - ix, Dunng the year Dr.
Jonah K. Kangogo was appointed Ag. Chair of Council from 23" Auvpust, 2021 and he served in that

capacilty up to the end of the financial year.

ivi Auditors
The Auditor-General is responsible for the statutory audit of the University in accordance with Article
229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Auvdit Act 20015 for the vear ended June 30, 2022,

By Order of the Council

Frof. Stephen G. Agong’, FhD, FAAS
Yice Chancellor/Secretary to the Council

[
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i1. STATEMENT OF COUNCIL RESPONSIBILITIES

Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and Section 47 of the Universities Act, 2012
require the Council to prepare financial statements in respeet of the University, which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the University at the end of the financial vear and the operating
results of the University for that year. The Council is alse required to ensure that the University keeps
proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the financial position of the
University, The Council is alse responsible far safeguarding the assets of the University

The Council is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the University’s financial statements,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the University for and as at the end of the
financial year ended on June 30, 2022. This responsibility includes: {i)Maintaining adequate financial
management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the reporting
period, (ii)Maintzining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the University, (iii)Designing, implementing and maintaining internal
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that
they are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud, (iv)Safeguarding the assets
of the University; (v)Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi)Making
accounting estimates thal are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Council accepts responsibility for the University's financial statements, which have been prepared
using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates,
in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner
required by the PFM Act, 2012 and the Universities Act, 2012. The Council 15 of the opinion that the
University’s financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of Universily's transactions during
the financial year ended June 30, 2022, and of the University’s financial position as at that date,

The Council further confirms the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the University,
which have been relied upon in the preparation of the University’s financial statements as well as the

adequacy of the systems of internal Anancial control
Maothing has come to the attention of the Council to indicate that the University will not remain a going

concemn for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements
The University's financial statements were approved by the Council on 26th September 2022 and signed

on its behalf by: ——
i : .
-.'1.' s '_:':.' - -'_jl & : c-- -.-—ﬂ-:r" -
- % = .-..-.-.:i..-...-..-..-.... e e T Y T T T '
Chairman of Council Vice-Chancellor
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UNIVERSITY OF SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE, 2022

PREAMBLE
| draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statemeants,

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Govemment
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose

C. Report on Effectiveness of Intemal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituled checks and balances to guide internal
operations, This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management envirenment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with govemance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does nol necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are propearly designed and were working effectively in the financial
yaar under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three paris of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Qualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Jaramogi Oginga Odinga
University of Science and Technology set out on pages 1 to 42, which comprise the

Keport of the Avdiror-General on Jaramogi Opiege Odinga Universiy of Scfence and Technology for the peor ended
30 Tuwe, 2022



statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2022, and the statement of financial
performance, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit
Act, 2015. | have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all maternal
respects, the financial position of Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and
Technology as at 30 June, 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended, in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards
(Accrual Basis) and comply with the University Act, 2012 and the Public Finance
Managemeant Act, 2012,

Basis for Qualified Opinion
1. Failure to Prepare and Submit for Audit Financial Statements for a Project

The statement of financial performance reflects research grants of Kshs 987 657,199
which includes USAID Boresha Jamii grant of Kshs. 799 100 600 as disclosad in Motle 7
to the financial statements. In addition, Note 17 to the financial statements reflects the
same amount under expensas. However, Management did not prepare a separate and
submit for audit a set of financial statements as required by the agreement between the
USAID and the University as detailed in the attachment to the agreement on Mandatory
otandard Provisions for Non-US Non-governmental Organizations on Audits, which
states that the recipient must have annual audit consistent with 2CFR Part 200, Subpart
F, which requires that for any recipient fiscal year, in which the recipient expends a
combined total of US $750,000 or more in all federal awards, either directly or indirectly,
the recipient must have an annual audit.

Further, the project’'s expendifure of Kshs, 799,100,600 related to research and other
related expenses and the details of the research work were not provided for audit review.
In addition, an internal audit report by PwC dated July 28, 2022 indicated that out of the
total expenditure of Kshs.441 315536 as at 31 January, 2022, an amount of
Kshs.51,392 316 was ineligible or unsupported.

In the circumstances, the completeness and accuracy of the research expenses of
Kshs. 799,100,600 for the year ended 30 June, 2022 could not be confirmed.

2. Doubtful Receivables from Exchange Transactions

The statement of financial position reflects an amount of Kshs 265 174,102 under
receivables from exchange transactions, which as disclosed in Note 22 to the financial
statemants, is net of provision for doubtful debts of Kshs.256 659,717, However, review
of records revealed that some of the debts are as old as the University. In addition, it was
observed that the University's bad debts portfolio continue to increase at a high rate, and
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no effort appears to have been made by the University Management fo recover the long
outstanding debts.

In the circumstances, the recoverability of the receivables from exchange transactions, of
Kshs. 265,174,102 appears doubtful and thus the accuracy of the reported balance as al
30 June, 2022 could not be confirmed,

3. Failure to Revalue Fully Depreciated Assets in Use and Disclose Obsolete Assets

As previously reported, the balance of property, plant and equipment of
Kshs. 3,474 654 607 as disclosed in Note 24 to the financial statements, includes fully
depreciated assets with a total cost value of Kshs. 190,871,988 which were sfill in use but
had not been revalued as required. In addition, review of the fixed asset register revealad
undisclosed impaired and obsolete assets with a historical cost of Kshs.29,043 8435,

In the circumstances, the completeness and accuracy of property, plant and equipment
with a total cost value of Kshs 218,815,837 as at 30 June, 2022 could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAls). | am independent of the Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of
Science and Technology Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics.
| have fulfiled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 1SSAl and in
accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial
statements in Kenya. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

Other Matter
Budgetary Control and Performance

The statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts reflect a final budget and
actual receipt on a comparable basis of Kshs 2,699,922 769 and Kshs. 2622172168
respectively resulting to underfunding of Kshs.77,750,601 or three (3%) per cent of the
budget. Similarly, the University spent Kshs.2 508,798,752 against an approved
expenditure budget of 28627819418 resuling in an under expenditure of
Kshs. 118,022,666 or five (5%) the budget Underfunding and under expenditure may
have negatively affected the planned activities of the University to attain its intended
objectives,

REFORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 2286} of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the matter described in the Basis for Conclusion on Lawfulness and
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Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources saction of my report, | confirm thal, nothing else
has come to my attention to causa me 1o believe that public resources have not been
applied lawfully and in an effective way

Basis for Conclusion
Delayed Completion of Projects

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs 3,474 654 607 which includes work in progress of Kshs.2 379 813 8085 as disclosed
in Mate 24 to the financial statements. Review of payment vouchers and other documents
revealed that the Unpiversity made payments totalling Kshs.B5 296934 to various
contractors for the following projects during the year;

Description Amount (Kshs.)
Tuiticn block 23648518
Administration block 16,035.492
Ultra-madern library 45612 924
Total 85,296,934

However, field venfication of the projects at the time of audit in February, 2023 revealad
that the projects were incomplete with no contractors on the sites. In addition, the
expacted completion dates of the projects could not be ascertained.

In the circumstances, the university did not achiave value for money for the expenditure
of Kshs.85,296 934 on the projects for the year ended 30 June, 2022,

The audt was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000, The standard requires that |
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion

REFPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7{1)}{a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, | confirm that, nothing has come to my aftention to cause me o
believe that internal controls, risk management and overall governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion

The audit was conducted in accordance with 1SSA1 2315 and 135A1 2330. The standards
require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
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operating effectively, in all materal respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the University Council

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
staterments in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal control as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control, risk managemeant and governance.

In preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
ability of the University to continue to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to liquidate the University or to cease operations.

Managemeant is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015,

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The University Council is responsible for oversesing the financial reporiing process,
reviewing the effectiveness of how the Management menitors compliance with relevant
legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and systems
are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance and risk
managemeant, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatemeant, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit repart in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
iz not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with |SSAls will always detect
a matenal misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstaterments can arise from fraud
or error and are considerad material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

In addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
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compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229{8) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, | consider internal control in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and sysfems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal control would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be material weaknesses under the ISSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employeas in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subjecl to the risk thal controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducled in accordance with ISSAls, | exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

s |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a matenal misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resuling from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the going concem basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the ability to continue as a going concemn or to sustain its services. If | conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to
the refated disclosures in the financial statements or, f such disclosures are
inadequate, to modity my opinion. My cenclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of my audit report, However, future events or conditions may
cause the University to cease to continue as a geing concern or to sustain its services,

« [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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= Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the University to express an opinion on the financial statements.

» Perform such other procedures as | consider necessary in the circumstances.

| communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that are identified during the audit.

| also provide Management with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

CPA Nan BS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

14 June, 2023

Report of the Awditor-General on Jaramog! Oginga Odinga Universine of Science ond Technalomy far the vear ended

St June, 2022
Fi




Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University af Seience and Technology
Annual Report and Financial Statemenis
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13. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

MNotes 2021-2022 2010-2021
Kshs Kshs
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfers from other guuem?nenm entities 1.072,112,488 1.167,937,537
Research grants T “::-IE?.ES?J?E' 130,052 666
Donations SISDD.U'D'}_. | o -
= 2,063,269,687 1,297, 990,203
Revenue from exchange transactions
FR.-I:TIE':I.’i.EIE of services ) 432,928,150 287,747,195
Rental revenue from facilities and equipment 10 15,256,520 | 8,647,200
Other income I ! 110,717,602 23 483 455
t 558,902,481 J9.877.850
| Total revenue 2,622,172,168 | 1,617,868,053
Expenses
Emplovee costs 12 [,197,728,193 1,273.661,.892
Lise of goods and services 13 205,737,504 IEIEJ.*??F
Council expenses 14 15,534,167 [4.088,015
Depreciation and amortization expense 15 42,456,324 56,123,108 |
Repairs and maintenance 1 16 14,532 262 16,313,797
Research expenses 17 991,717,164 132,981,603
Finance costs I8 [5,592.221 | 7.378,627
“Total expenses 2493298334 | 1,694,481,049
Other gains/{losses) |
(rain(loss) on foreign exchange transactions 15 331:34_5 (26, ?If_lf'?:l
Gain/(loss) on revaluation of biological assets 20 37,000 (197,000
Surplus/{deficit) for the year li?,!!ﬂ&ﬁi_ [ T6.836,704)
The notes set out on papges 8 to 4] form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
The Financial Statements set out on pages | to 47 were signed on behalf of the Council by:
e —i i

_?__—,_—T-.-—a_:.

o CEEPTTET TN e aam i n

'W[‘E Chancellor v Chief Finance Officer
Prof. Stephen G. Agong’ CPA Nancy Muchai
TCPAK Mo T478

pite ¥b-a. 22 Date 2 la.q.22

Date 210y, 9.2

Chairman of C
Prof. Shem O, Wandiga
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14. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

Motes 2021-2022 2020-2021
Kshs Kshs
Agsels
Current Assels
Cash and Cash equivalents 21 156,977,473 162974859
Receivables from Exchange Transactions 21 265,174,102 190804413
| Inventories 23 19,656,932 16,218,703
Total Current Assels 441,808,507 369997977
MNon-Current Assels ,
Property, Plant and Equipment 2d 3.474.654,607 3,263 699,019 |
intangible Assets = 25 | W1A27,002] 66I8001]
| Biological assets 26 670,000 633,000
Total Non- Current Assets 3, 486,751,609 3270950920
Total Assers 3.928.560.116 3,640,948 897 |
Liabilities
Current Liabilities il
Trade and Other Payables 27 26,062,123 26,252,603
Refundabie Deposits from Customers 1% 68,922 400 66,934 578
Prepayments and Deposits a2 53,443,422 32,310,169
Current Portion of Bank Loan - 3 17,240,133 15,035,420
Deferred Income 3] 111,389,116 123,030,739
Employee Benefit Obligation il 27,956,965 Gl 429 GRS
Total Current Liabilities 336,014,160 174993494
Non-Current Liabilities
Bank loan 30 96,941,838 | 14,644,568
| Total Non- Current Liabilities 96,941,538 114,644,968 |
| Total Liabilities 431,955,999 489,638,462
MNet Assets 3495604117 BIS1310435 |
| Capital Grants Heserve 3,458,515076 3,243 515076 |
Eevenug Feserves 37,089 041 (92.204,64 1)
Total Met Assets 3,495 604,117 30501310435
Total Net Assets and Liabilities 3. 495,604,117 3150, 310,435

The financial statements set out on pages [ 1o 47 were signed on behalf of the Council by;

Scrriqdgriisrraqanraneerraiitannnes paEmLd

Prof. Stephen G. Agong’
Vice-Chancellor

nﬂ-"Eu i

‘WEPA Nancy Muchal
Chief Finance OfMicer

r T4
ICPAK NEN% ?1':! nF. 0

aaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaa

Prof. Shem ©. Wandiga
Courncil Chairman
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15. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Capital Grants Revenue
Total
TESErves reserves
Kshs kshs Kshs
As at July 1, 2020 3,098,352 431 (15,367,935) 3.,082,984,496
Surplus/deficit) for the vear - | (T6,836,706) (76,836, TM)
Capital/development grants received during the 145,162 645 = 145,162,645
vear
As at June 30, 2021 3243515076 | (92,204.641) | 3,151, 310,435
As at July 1, 2021 3.243,515.076 (92,204,641) 3,151,310435
Surplus for th
it e o - 120293682 126,631,682
Capital/development grants receéived during the 215,000,000 ) 215,000,000
year
As at June 30, 2022 3458515076 37,089,041 3.495.604,117
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Annual Report and Finaneial Stotements
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16. STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

2021-1022

2020-2021

Motes

Rshs

Kshs

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipis

Transfers from other govemments entities

| |
1.072,112,4%8 | 1,167.937,537

Research grants ORT 657,199 [ 30,052 666
Rendering of services 432,928,350 | 287,747,195
Renmal revenue from fecilities and equipment 15,256,529 BT 200
Finance income 182.34K (26,709
Other income 110,717,602 | 23483455
Gainloss on revaluation af binlogical assets 37,000 {197 000
Donations S 3,500,000 .
Total receipts 3.622,592,016 | 1,617,644.344
Pavments
Emplﬂ}'EE Costs 1,197 728,293 | 1275661892
L'se of goods and services 215,737,904 181,933,904
Council Expenses 15,534,167 14,088,025
I Repairs and maintenance 14,532,262 16,313,797
Research expenses 991,717,164 132,981,603
Depreciation and amortization 42,456,324 56,123,108
___FL!'l_arlce costs ]5.?92,12[ |7, 37E,627
Total payments 1492.372.451 | 1,694,481,051
129,293,681 | (76,836,707) |
Add back: Depreciation 42 456,524 56,123 108
(iain on revaluation (37,000) 197,000
Asset Donation (3,500 (K1) -
| Operating s:.:rpmsdl':tt'am working capital _cﬁa:ug-es ]'E'r"E‘ z“r‘aTJEE (20.516,598)
[Ennr:nhc“,l-fd::rum: in Inventory (3,438 229) 4813932
(Increase)decrease in Receivables (74,369.686) | (10,754.699) |
IncreaseX{decrease) in Pavables (41,184,047} BE, 737,040
Met cash fows from/{used in) operating activities 49,221,043 | 62179674

Cash flows from investing activities

]

Purchase of PPE and Intangible assets

(254,720,013} |

(218,905, 790)

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (254,720, ma} (218,905,790)
_l':'fﬂsh flows from financing activities

Capital development grants received 215,000,000 145,162,643
. Repayment of borrowings (15,498 417 (I3, 712001

MNet cash flows from financing Activitics 199,501,583 131,450,634
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2021-2022 2020-2021
Notes Kshs Kshs
Net decrease in cash & cash equivalents {5,997.386) | (25,175481)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July 21 162,974,859 | (88,150,341
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June 21 156,977,473 [ 162,974,859

The financial statements set out on pages | to 47 were signed on behalf of the Council by:

== SiPasge & a—es ..

Prof, Stephen . Agong },‘_{.'F..& Mancy Muchai Prof. Shem O, Wandiga

Vice-Chancellor Chiel Finance Officer Coonecil Chairman
ICEAK MANo:T478
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Jaramogi Oginga Qdinga University of Science and Techuology
Annual Reports and Financinl Stutements

For the year ended June 36, 2022,

13. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
|

reneral Information
Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and Technology is established by and derives

its autherity and accountability from the Universities Act, 2012 and the Jaramogi Oginga
Odinga University of Science and Technology Charter, 2013, The University is wholly owned
by the Government of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The University’s principal activity is
the provision of University education through integrated training, research and communaty

putreach for sustainable development,

Statement of Compliance and Basgis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the

measurement at re-valued amounts of certamn items of property, plant and equipment,
marketahle speurities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired assess al their esnmated
recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present value. The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Public Sector Accounting
Standards ([PSAS) allows the use of estimates and assumptions. [t also requires management

t exercise judgement in the process of applying the University's accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared and presented m Kenya Shillings, which iz the
functional and reporting currency of the University.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, the State
Corporations Act and the Universities Act, 2012, and Intemnational Public Sector Accounting
Standards (IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the
years presented.

Adoption of New and Revised Standards

New and amended standardy and (nterpretations in issue gffective in the year ended 30 June
2022

IPSASE deferred the application daie of standards from 1" January 2022 owing to Covid 19,
This was done to provide entities with ime to effectively apply the siandards. The defermal was
get for 1™ January 2023,

New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but nol yel gffective in the year ended

30 June 2022,



Joramogi Dginga Qdinga University of Science and Technology
Annual Reports and Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2022,

Motes (o the Financial Statements (Continued)

Standard
[PFSAS 41:
Financial
Instniments

IPSAS 42
Social
Benefits

Effective date and impact:

Applicable; 1" Junuary 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 41 s to establish principles for the financial reporting
of financial assets and liabilities thar will present relevant and usefol
information (o users of financial statements for their assessment of the
amoamnis, timing and uncertainty of an Entty’s future cash fows,

IPSAS 41 provides users of financial statements with more usefial information
than [PSAS 29 by:

« Applying a single classification and measurement model for financial assets
that considers the characteristics of the asset’s cagh flows and the objective for
which the asgat 15 hald;

* Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model that is
applicable to all fnancial instruments subject to impairment testing; and

« Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the hedging
arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model develops a strong link
between an Entity’s risk management strategies and the accounting treatment
for instrurnents held as part of the nsk management strategy,

Applicable: 1™ January 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful
representativeness and comparability of the information that a reporting Entity
provides in its financial statements abour social henefits. The information
provaded should help vsers of the financial statements and

general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the Entity.

(b} The key features of the operation of those social benetit schemes; and

{c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's financial
performance, financial position and cash flows,
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For the year ended Jugr Jg 2022
Standard Effective date and impact:
Amendments  Applicable: 1st January 2023:
to Other a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the
[FSAS components of borrewing costs which were inadvertently omitted when
resulting from IF5AS 41 was issued.
IPSAS 41, b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on hedging
Financial and credit rsk which were inadvericntly omitted when [PSAS 41 was
Instruments isswed.
¢) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for
financial guaratitee contracts which were inadvertentdly omined when
[PSAS 41 was msued.
Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classifying financial
instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis [PSAS which were inadvertently
ommitied when IPSAS 41 was issued
Oithver Applicable 1" Janwary 2023
improvements s [PSAS 22 Disclosure af Financia! nformation about the General Crovernment
o [PSAS Secior.
Amendmenis to refer to the latest System of National Accounts (SMA 2008).
» [PSAS 39 Employee Benefits
Mow deletes the term composite social security henefits as it is no longer defined
in [PSAS.
=« [PSAS 19: Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement
Standerd no longer incleded in the 2021 [PSAS handbook s it is now superseded
by [PSAS 41 which is applicable from 1* January 2023.
IPSAS 43 Applicable 1° January 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measursment,
presentation, amd disclosure of leases. The ebjective 15 to ensure that lessees and
lessors provide relevant information in a manner that faithfully represents those
transactions. This information gives 4 basis for users of financial statements to
agsess the effect that leases have on the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of an Entity,

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present information
on nght of uge assets and lease habilities.

1
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Standard Effective date and impact:
[PSAS 44: Applicable 1™ Janwary 2025
Non- Current  The Standard requires,
Assets Held Asgets that meet the erileria to be classified as held for 2ale to be measured at the

for Sale and lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the depreciation of

Discontinued  such assets to cease and:
Oiperations Assets that meet the criteria to be classified ag held for sale to be presented

separately in the statement of financial position and the results of discontinued

operations 1o be presented separately in the statement of financial performance.

it Early adoption of standeards
The University did not early — adopt any new ot amended standards in the year

202112022,

I
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a) Revenve recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Fees, taxes and [ines
The University recognizes revenues from fees, taxes and fines when the event acours and the asset

recognition criteria are mét To the extent that there is a related condition attached that would give
rise ta a lisbility to repay the amount, deferred income is recognized mstead of revenue. Cther
non-exchange revenues are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits or

service potential associated with the asset will flow to the University and the fair value of the asset

can be measured reliably.

Transfers from other government gntities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other govemment entities are measured at fair
value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset {cash, goods, services and property) if the
transfer is free from conditions and it 1s probable that the economic benefits or service potential
related to the asset will flow to the University and can be measured reliably. Recurrent grants are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income, Development/capital granis are recognized
in the statement of financial position and realised in the statement of comprehensive MCHmE over
the useful life of the assets that has been acquired using such funds.

ii} Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of services
The University recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of

completion when the ouicome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of completion
is measured by reference to labour howrs incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated labour
hours,

Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue 1s recognized only to the extent

that the expenses incurred are recoverable,

Interest income
Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yicld discounts

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's nel
carrying amount. The method applies this yield w the principal outstanding to determing interest

income each period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Folicies (Continued)

Dividends

Drividends or similar distributions are recognized when the shareholder’s or the University's rnght
lo receive payments is sstablished

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investmenl properties is accounted for on a

straight-line basis over the lease terms and included m revenue

b) Budget information

The original budget for FY 2021-2022 was approved by the National Assembly on 28% July, 2021.
Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget in
accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities, The additional appropriations
are added to the original budget by the University upon receiving the respective approvals in order
o conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the University recorded addifional approprations of
Kshs 604,355 684 on the 2021-2022 budget following the poverning body's approval,

Budget information (continued)

The University's budget is prepared on the same basis as the actual income and cxpenditure
dizclosed in the financial stitemments. The financial statements and budget are prepared on accrual
basis using s classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial
pesformance. A comparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis o the
approved budget, i presented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

In addition to the basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statemenis are also
made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the pressntation of the
financial statements and the approved budget.

A statement o reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial

performance has been presented under section |7 of these financial statements.

13
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Wotes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Filicles {Continwed)

¢) Taxes

Current income tax

Currenl income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amouni
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation autherities, The tax rates and tax laws used
1o comipute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in
the area where the University operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net asgets
and not in the statement of financial performance. Management penodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax retwrns with respect to situations 1 which applicable tax regulations are subject to

inrerpretation and establishes provisions where appropriane,

) Kales fax

Expenses and assers are recognized net of the amount of sales tax, except:

i) When the sales tax meurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of
the azset or as part of the expense iam, as applicable

i} When receivables and pavables are stated with the amount of sales tax included

The net amount of gales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as

part of receivables or payables in the statement of financtal position,

e} Investmenl property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying
armount includes the replacement cost of components of an existing investment property at the
titne that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria arc met and excludes the costs of day-to-day
mamienanee of an investment property. Investment property acquired through a non-cxchange
transaction is measured at its fair value at the date of acquisition. Subsequent to iital recogmition,
investmient properties are measured using the cost model and are depreciated over the uscful
period. Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when
the investment property is permancntly withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit o
service potential is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the peniod

14
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Motes o the Financial Statements {Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)
of de-recognition. Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there 15 a change

1n use.

i} Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less aceurnulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Cost inclides expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the itemns, When
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Umiversity recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carmrying amount of
the plant and equipment as 3 replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair
and maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred. Whers an asset is acquired
in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its
fair value.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write down the cost of each asset, or the re-
valued amount, to its residual value over its estimated useful life using the following annual rates:

Dzgeription Annual Rate
Buildings 2,508
Plant, machinery and equipment 0% 4]
Office equipment 20%
| Computer equipment 33305
Motor vehicles 25%
Furniture and fittings 12.50M4
Crockery & [tensils 33.50%
Library Books 20%
£) Leases

Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially all of the rsks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased item to the University. Assets held under a finance lease are capitalized
at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased property or. if lower, at the present
value of the future minimum lease payments, The University also recognizes the associated lease
liability at the inception of the lease. The Lability recogmzed 15 measured as the present value of
the future minimum lease payments at initial recognition. Subsequent to mitial recognition, kease
payments are apportioned berween finance charges and reduction of the lease [iabidity 50 as w
aehieve a constant rate of interest on the remainmg balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognized as finance costs in surplus or deficit. An asset held under a finance lease 15 depreciated

]
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over the usehil life of the asset. However, if thers is no reasonable cerfaunty that the University

will obtain ownership of the asset by the end of the lease (erm, the asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. Operating leases are leases that
do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental 10 ownership of the feased item w

the University. Operating lease paymenis are recopnized & an operating expense in surplus or

deficit on & strarght-line basis over the lease term.

h) Intangible assets
Intangible assels acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assers

acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of the exchange. Followning
initial recopnition, mtangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Intemally generated intungible assets, excluding capitalized
development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the
period in which the expenditure i3 incwrred.

The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite.

i} Research and development costs

The University expenses research costs as incurmed, Development costs on an individual project
are recogmized as intangble assers when the Entity can demonsirate:

il The technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be available for use or
gitle

i)  Its inteation o complete and its ability to use or sell the assel

1)  How the asset will penerate Riture economic benefits or service potential

iv) The avaslability of resources (o complete the asset

v)  The ahility to measure reliably the expenditure during development

Following tnitial recogmition of an asset, the asset iz carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impaimment losses. Amortization of the asset beging when
development 1s complete, and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the peried of
expected future benefit. During the period of development, the asset 15 lested for impairment
annually with any impairment losses recognized immedintely in surplus or deficit,
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Summary of Significant Accounting Pelicies (Continued)
i Financial instruments

a) Financial assets

[nitisl recognition and mesgurement
Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Fmancial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assels, 45 appropeiate.
The University determines the classification of its financial assets al initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active marker After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less impatment.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking info account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest mte. Losses anising from impairment
are recognized in the surplus or defici

Held-to-maturity.

MNon-dertvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are
classified a5 held to maturity when the University has the positive intention and ability to hold it
to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-marunity investments are measured a1 amoefized
cost using the effective interest methad, less impaiment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in surplus or deficit
Impairment of financisl assets

The University assesses at cach reporting date whether there 15 objective evidence that a financial
asset or an entity of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or an entity of financial agsets is
deemed to be impaired if. and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an mourred *loss event”)
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
entity of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include the

following indicators:
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

i] The debtors or an entity of debtors are expenencing significant fnancial difficulty.

i) Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments

1i1) The probability that debtors will enter bankreptey or other financial reorganization.

ivl Observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated funure cash fows (e.g., changes

in arrears or =conomic conditions that corelate with defaultz)

by  Financial liabiities

tial recopnition and measurement
Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 arc classified as Gnancial labilities at fair value
through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as appropriate, The University determines the
classification of its financial liabilities &t initial recognition. All financial liabilities are recogmized
initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly atributable transaction

Cosis.

Loans and borrawin

After initial recognition, mierest beanng loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amaortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recogmzed in surplus or
deficit when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest method
amortization process. Amortized cost 15 caloulated by taking tnto account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fess or costs thal are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

k) Inventories

Inventory 15 measured at cost upon initial recognition, To the extent that inventory was received
through non-exchange transactions {for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory s
its fair value at the date of acquisition. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present
location and conditions are accounted for, as follows:

il  Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method.

ii)  Finished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs.
After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value,
However, to the extent that a class of mventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a
nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current replacement
cosl Met realizable value 15 the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less

the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Folicies (Continued)

or distribution. Inventones are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization ar

eonsumption in the ordinary course of operations of the Lniversity.

[} Frovisions

Provisions are recognized when the University has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of & past event, if is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
or service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. Where the University expects some or all of a provision o be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a
scparate assct only when the reimbirsement is virually certain The expense relating lo any

provision is presanted in the statement of financial performance net of any reimbursement.

Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debits
The University makes provisions for bad and doubtful debts at the followang rates:

Penod Outstanding Percentage Provision
Below & months 0%

B — 12 Months 10%

13 — 24 Months 5%

15 months and above 100G

mi) Contingent Habilities

The University does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details of any contingencies
in the nates to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an cutflow of resources embodying
economic benefits or service poteniial 15 remote

nj Contingent assets

The University does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details of a possible asset whose
existence is contingent on the occurmence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain fubure events
nod whelly within the control of the University in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent
assels arc assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the
financial statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or
service polential will arise and the asset’s value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related

revenue are recognized in the financial statements of the pertod in which the change ocours,
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

o MNature and purposs of reserves

The University creates and maintains reserves in leems of specific requirements, The capital
reserve reletes to items of property, plant and equipment developed from capital grisnts from the
Mational Government, inherited from the former Bondo teachers Tramning College. Revenue
reservies relates to transfers on purchase of additional assets.

Changes in accounting policies and estimates

The University recognizes the effocts of changes in accounting policy retrospectively. The effects
of changes in accounting policy are applied prospectively if retrospective application i3

i practical

pl Employee benefiis

ent fit plans
The University providez retirement benefits for its employees. Defined contribution plans arc
post-employment benefit plans under which the University pays fixed coninbutions into a separale
fund, and will have no legal or constructive ohligation to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employes benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits are
charged against income 1n the year in which they become payable. Defined benefit plang are post-
employment benefit plans other than defined-contnbution plans.
The defined benefit funds are actuanally valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit method
basis, Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum payments or increased future
contributions on propertional basis to all participating employers. The contributions and lump sum
payments reduce the post-employment benefit obligation,

q) Foreign currency (ransactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of exchange on the
date of the ransaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reporied at
the statement of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date.
Exchange differences arising from the sertlement of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors at
rates different from those at which they were initially recorded dunng the period, are recognized

as income or expenses in the period in which they arise,
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

r) Borrowing costs

Bomowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of property, plant and equipment.
Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being acquired or
constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when construction of the
asset is complete. Further borrowing costs are charged 1o the statement of financial performance.
5) Related partics

The University regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control
individually or jointly, or o exercise sipnuficant influence over the University, or vice versa.
Members of key management are regarded as refated pamies and comprise the Members of
Council, the Vice-Chancellor and senior managers.

4] Service concession arrangements

The University analyses all aspects of service concession amangements Lthat il enlers into in
determining the appropriate sccounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In- particular,
where a private party contributes an asset to the arrangement, the University recognizes that asset
when, and only when, it controls or regulates the services the operator must provide together with
the asset, to whom 1t must provide them, and at what pnce.

In the case of aszets other than “whole-of-life’ assets, it controls, through ownership, beneficial
entitlement or otherwise — any significant regidual interest in the asset at the end of the
arrangement. Any assets o recognized are measured at therr far value. To the extent that an asset
has been recognized, the University also recognizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash
consideration paid or received.

u}  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, shori-term deposits on call
and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject 1o nsignificant risk of changes in value,
Bank account balances include amounts held at various commercial banks at the end of the
financial wear. Short term cash imprests and advances o authorised public officers andfor
mmstitutions which were not surrendersd or accounted at the end of the fnancial vear are accounted
for in accounts recaivables.

¥) Comparative Migures

Where necessary, comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

recenfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation,

21



Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Scieace and Technology
Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022,

Motes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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W) Subsequent events
There have been no events subseguent to the financial vear end with o significant impact on the
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022,
5 Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The preparation of the University's financial statemenis in conformity with [P5A5S requires
management to make judgments, cstimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of
the reporting period, However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment o the carrying amount of the asset or bability affected
in future pericds.
Estimates and assumpiions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncenainty at the
reporting date, that have a zignificant nsk of causing a material adjustment o the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The University based
its azsumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements
were prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the University. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140)
Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty {Continued)
Useful lives and residuoal value
The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform
potential future use and value from disposal:

a) The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts emploved by the University,

b} The nature of the ssset, its susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology and

processes.

c)The nare of the processes in which the esset 1s deployed.

di  Avalability of funding 1o replace the asser,

e} Changes in the market in relation to the asset
Provisions
Provisions were mised and management determined an estimate based on the information
available, Additional dizclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note 40
Provisions are measured at the management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle

the obligation at the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect 15 matenal.

X2



Jaramagi Oginga Odinga University af Science and Techrology
Annual Reports and Financial Statemenis
For the year ended June 30, 2022,

Motes to the Financial Statements (Continsed)
6. Transfers from Other Government entitics

Mame OF The Amount Amount | Amount Total Prior yvear
Entity Sending | recognized to | deferred | recognised | transfers 2020-2021
The Grant Statement of | under in capital 2021-22
Financial deferred | fund.
performance | ineome
KShs KShs K5hs KShs KShs
Ministrw'State
Department for
University
Edusation and
Rescarch 1072112 488 - | 215,000,000 | 1,287,112 488 | 1,313,10d,182
Total LOTL 112 488 | 215, 000,000 | 1,2R7,112 488 | 1,313 1040 1B2
[ 2022 2021
Kshs. Kshs.
Governmeni granis
First Quarter ending 30 Sept _?_5-6,9]9,1&2 B9, TET 564
Second Quarier ending 3121 Diec 266,939,202 271,045 991
Third Quarter ending 3 15t March 271,236,515 261,049,991
“Fourth Quarter ending 30 June 266,997,570 246,049 991
Total 1,072,112.458 1,167,937,537
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7. Research granis

Dreseripiion 1021-2012 20=-2021
Kshs. Kshs
TNO FF Project 470,558 :
Mational Research Fund - 2,399,199
Recycling Network Programme 242,658 266,500
Conflict Violence and Environmental Change Project 4,580,946 3,136,081
Neonatal E’Eéi&“s:ud;.- - 48,000
Clean Cooling Selutions (NRF) o, 200 1,029 A
Ptfcnm:?t.i,nn Awareness and F"m-li:'tpari-un of Persons with 537397 7.882.450
Disability
Whose Heritage Matlers 1,936,210 1,301 48]
ACEIl Werld Bank 112,144,641 75.113.275
Commonwealth - TELTelta Project 64, 166 525535
Grassroot Financial Innovation 14,576,534 11468373
Wheel Change 766,455 1,955,661
Safe Water and Waste Management 5113227 2467595
WHO [One Health for Vector Bome Dizeases) 2 Bl B0 [,750,638
[ Matze Yield 79,400 683,100
Covid-19 Containment 5,506,847 .
Waste Water Sampling - 55219
Participatory Innovation 1,871,782 92386
Transformative Innovation 1,402,000 334,491
ACU-ECR Training s 136,992
[ Institutional Development Fund (NRF) 3,471,406 17,597,071
Healthy Insect Project &, 008,019 | BO& B20
More Crop Per Drop B47 395 -
Achets Domesticus and Gryllus Bima 346,640 -
VLIR 13,216,242 =
Pilot Health 2336314 :
EDCTP-CDAE 2261225 -
RBufforl Foundation 2,153,104
Parkinsons Awareness [PACKS) 3,118,353 -
APPEAL 1,385,851 -
Swine 63,526 ;
TransCITT ' 33,653 =
Pamoja Programmes 100000 =
USAID Boresha Jamii 7499 100,600 .
Total N 987,657,199 | 130,052,666

Research grants relate fo fiunds received for vartous research prajects.
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8. Donation

Drescription 2021-2011 2020-2021
Kshs Kshs

Motor vehicle donation 3,500,000 -

Tatal ﬂll:llii:hl] 3,500, (i) -

The Uﬁﬁgf@- received @ doration of a motar vehicle, Pick Up Regisiration Ne KTHF 2320 from

Sufaricom Lipa na Mpesa Promotion

9, Rendering of Services

Description 2021-2022 2020-2021
KShs KShs
Activity Fees 9,946 800 6,995,200
Computer Time Fees 41,002,250 2B,632,500
Examination Fees 24,424 250 13,905,500
Field Practical Work 19,370,000 G, 480,000
Library Fee 8,329,250 5,640,225
Maintenance Fee - B, 106,250 4.552 (00
Registration Fee 4,043,500 2,313,500
Students’ [D . 1,621,500 679,300
Students” Medical Fee 20,203,500 14,025,000
Tuition Fees 1‘:'-'-1,&36,&5? 204,305,970
Dissertation 1,240,000 218,000
Total Revenue from Rendering of Services 432028350 | 287,747,195
10. Rental Revenue from Facilities and Equipment
Description 1021-2012 2p20-2a2l
Kihs kshs
Smdents” Accommuodation Fees 0841, 0 4,465 400
Hall Hire 105, 0] -
Hire of Transport and Equipment B16,492 168,140
Staff Rental Income - 3,546,000 3,704,000
“Hire of Gown 702,000 -
Other Rental Revenue 75,000 -
Lezase of land 171,037 219,660
Total Rentals 15,256,519 8,647,200
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11. Other Income

Description 2021-2022 1020-2021
Kshs Kshs

Application Fees |, 206,000 1,163,709
Catering Income 11,251,295 6,466,322
Graduation Fees 3 394 400 #3239 350
Library Income and Photocopy 516,797 474,267
Sale of Water 244,325 115413
Examination Resit 1,555,600 643,200
Mursery locome 749050 343,550
Ethical Review B3Z000 .
Investment Income (Jonustes) 3,052,055 1.404,063
Research Administration Charges 12,737,031 4. 204 307
Other Incomes | K07, 528 13714

| Short Courses 20,300 -
De minis 67,351,221 5
Total other income 118,717,602 13,483,455

12. Employee Cosis
Description 2021-1022 1020-2021
Kshs Kshs

Payroll Costs 1,000 200,111 179,257,880
Medical Insurance 70,489,943 62,929,706
Stafl Development 6,193,743 2 QRE 09
Office Entertainment 1,249 626 1,939 T08

[ Part Time Lecturers 20,535,870 28,546,408
Employee costs 1,197,718,193 1.275,661.892

26




Joramogi Oginga dinga University of Science and Technology

Annual Reports and Financial Satewmenis

For the year ended June 30, 2021,

Maotes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

L3. Use of Goods and Services

Description 2021-2002 2020-2021
Kshs Kshs
Accreditation and Cumiculum Development expenses 1,930,100 714,000
Admission Related expenses 703,793 428951
“Advertising and Publicity 1,497,740 2,693,144
Ant-Cormaption expenses 43,500 76,630
Auditng Services 330,000 580,000
Bank Charzes and Commissions 508,204 1,253 064
Bill boards and Fates - 715603
Cleaning Materials 1,031,387 781,560
Committes expenses 6,314,633 1917924
Computer Operaling expenses 1,139 %46 |, 796,013
Confersnces and Seminars 1,974 696 216,916
Cooking Fuel and Gas 590,095 B&9,401
Covid-1% Besponse Inifiatives 52414 1,185,507
Di.sal;mty Mainstreaming 382 B8O -
Electricity expenses 13,674,250 12,294.377
Examination Materials 26, K00 2,728 586
Crender Mainsireaming am:l HIV expenses L0, 950 50,600
Ciraduation l:?.pcum- 3,084,063 4,647,114
ICT expenses 3645 021 2 644 B4R
[nsurance expenses {Property and Stafl) 8,414,884 6,455 478
Intermes expenses 15,330,681 14,304 5484
Investment expenses {Jooustes) 7,639,568 0457294
ISJD Certification expenses 481,037 794 655
Lalmramr:.r Chemicals - 167018
Leasz and Rental 6.574.71% 10412610
Library expenses 35480 259,292
License and Subscriptions 4,538,571 4,464,833
Stwdents' Medical expenses 6,197,712 3,646,745
Oitrench Progeamimnes T4E 480 53,788
Performance Contract expenses 725,172 219278
Postal and Couner expenses ﬁﬁ.ﬂET 321,852
Professional and Legal Sernices 1439316 8. 7R TAR
Purchase of Foodstufl 13,627,636 8,061,695
Sanitary Expaﬂs&s 2,416,207 977,224
Security expenses 20,449,270 | 20,733,600
Senate expenses - 240,970
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Drescription 2021-20212 2020-202 1
kshs Kshs
Shows and Exhibitions 44,800 .
| Sports and Games [ 535,070 -
Staff Welfars [.071,582 112,640
Stationery expenses 4,885,313 5,070,288
Stident Activities 5.745.562 2203054
Supervision of Thesis 13,034,470 5,141,467
Teaching Materials 171,868 1.1E1, 540
Teaching Practice and Field Attachment 4,911,593 4,793,609
T:ﬁ;plrm CAPENSES 2287627 3542007
Transport Operating expenses | 1.156,5’-’2 7956757
Travelling and Accommodation Ild...l.i?';hﬁSE 12,668,032
Uniforms and Clothing 3,195,004 330,600
Water and Sewerage cxpensss - 4,600,535 2,290,551
Prowision for doubtful debts 17,735,020 105606 1
Total Use of Goods and Services 215737904 | 181,933,999
14, Council Expenses
Description 1021-2022 2020-2021
Kshs kshs
Chairman's Honoraria 87000 1.0k 100
Sitting Allowances B, 120,000 5, TR0 000
Travel and Subgistence 5705675 3.547.7137
Capacity Building and Training 1,621,492 3,716,288
Total 15,534,167 14,088,025
15. Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Description 2011-2012 2020-2021
Kshs Kshs
Depreciation 42,456,324 56,110,132
Amartization - 11976
Total depreciation and amertization 41,455.32:1 56,123,108
16. Repairs and Maintenance
Deseription 1021-2022 2020-2021
Kihs Kshs
Building Repairs and Befurbizhment [ 1,400,883 14,010,799
Maintenance of Plant and Equipment 3,131,262 2,302,998
Total Repairs and Maintenance 14,532,262 16,313,797
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17. Research Expenses

Total Research Expenses

Description 2021-2022 2020-2021
E Kshs Kshs
TNO FF Project
MNational Research Fund 470,558 2,399,199
Recyeling Metwork I;rug-rarnm:t 242 658 266,500
Conflict Violence and Environmental Change Project | 4580946 | 3,136,081
“Meonatal Sepsis Study - 48,000
Clean Cooling Selutions (NEF) TG, 200 1,028,600
Pr.am-z.lt.inn Awareness and Participation of Persons with 537397 7.882,450
Drisabiliny
| Whose Heritage Matters 1,936,210 1301481
ACEI Waorld Bank 112, 144,641 75113275
Commonwealth - TEL/Delta Project 64, 165 525,535
Girassroot Financial Innevation 14,576,534 | 11,468573
Wheel Change ThH, 455 1,955,661
Safe Water and Waste Management 5113227 | 2,467,595
WHO (One Health for Vector Bome Diseases) 2 860,800 | 1,750,638
baize Yield 79,400 683, 14
Covid-19 Containment 3,506,347 -
“Waste Water Sempling : 55219
Participatory Innovition 1,877,782 92386
 Transformarive Innovation 1,402,000 334,491
ACU-ECR Training - .= 136,992
Instimational Development Fund (NREF) 31471406 | 175974071
Healthy Insect Project. 6,068,019 1,908,820
More Crop Per Drop B3935 .
Acheta Domesticus and Gryllus Bima 546,640 -
VLIR 13,216,282 3
Pilot Health 2,336,314 -
EDCTP-CDAE 3 261,225 3
Ruffarf Foundation X 153,104
Parkinsons Awareness (PACKS) 3,111,353 -
APPEAL o 1,389,861 +
Swine 63,526
TransCITT o 35,653
Pamoja Programmics 10000 -
University Research 4059965 | 2928937
USAID Boresha Jamii T 100 600 .
- 991,717,164 | 132,981,603

24




Jeramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and Technology

Annual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2022,

MNotes to the Financial Statements (Confinued)

18. Finance Cosis

Description 2021-2022 2020-2021
Kshs Kshs
Interest on lnan
First [nstalment 5,462 565 6,040,159
Second Instalment 5.213,386 SEI041B
Third [nstalment 4006270 5528050
| Total Mnanee costs 15,592,221 1T3ATR6ZT
19. Gain/Loss an Foreign Exchange Transactions
Description 2021-2022 2020-1021
ABSA Dollar Account 451 383 (17384
Equity Bank {99.035) (9,325)
Total Galn 382843 (26,709)
20, Gain/Less on Revaluation of Bislogical Assets
Description 2021-2022 2020-2021
_ Kshs ‘Kshs
| Balance brought forwand 633,000 30,000
Closing balance 670,000 633,000
Gain/Loss on revaluation 37000 {197 ,0010)
1. Cash and Cazh Equivalenis
Descriplion 2021-2022 2010-2021
Kshs Kshs
Current Accounts 151,949,141 [45.277.B9]
Savings Account 4,045 632 17,696 891
Cash at Hand B2.650 -
Total Cash And Cash Equivaients l 156,977 473 162,974,145
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
21 (a) Detailed Analysis of the Cash and Cash Equivalents

i 2021-2022 2020-2021
Financial Institution Account number Kshs Kshs
a) Current Accounl
Equily Bondo Project Ac 0750261507711 ; 412,877
KCB Bondo Project 1171196679 13,063,101 | 12.884.113
Barclays Dollar Account 2024513516 5662473 21379.732
Co- Dperative Bank Sizya (1129255700500 29,506, 348 3,249,545
Equity Account 0750294239156 6,535,092 11612773
Equily Accounts Angawa 01260299751274 624,650 503,558
KCB Current Account 1115766643 1,812,990 5242 543
KCB Development Account [113873035 | 133,922 §3.724
KCB HELB Account 1117122409 651,211 497,136
KCB Health Pilot Project Acc 1286039975 163,686 :
JOOUST VLIR 0730271748376 1,342,769 .
EQUITY KLIP | Account 750298895605 T 149,047
EQUITY KLIP 2 Account D7502990704580 113630 218,775
EQUITY ACE 11 Project Account OTS02TITA48376H %9.201,166 107,954,145
EQUITY UBJ Account 1,780,740 -
Co-operative Bark JOOUSTESS Acc 1141255709 114,645 :
Sub- Total 151,949,141 | 145,277,968
b} Savings Account
KCR Savings Account [113046066 | 4,945,682 |  17.696,891
T 40450682 | 17,696,891
¢} Others '
Cash In Hand (Mpesa) I 82,650 -
Sub- Total | 82,650 .
Grand Total : IS-E,H"_FL:T] 162,974,859

3




Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and Technology
Annwal Beports and Financial Staremenis
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
12 Receivables from Exchange Transactions

22(a) Receivables from Exchange Transactions

2021-2022 2020-2021

Drescription Kshs Kshs

Students Fees Deblors 457,180,667 414,043,160
Prowvigion for Doubtful Debts (256,659, 71T7) | (238.924.596)
Staff Imprests [.842,700 1162, 100
Deposit With Suppliers 467,000 467,000
[nternal Debtors 2.525019 2329015
Prepaid Expenses [ 545 641 84529473
Cither Debiors 2,227,240 3274874
USAID Boresha Jamii 56,045,551 .
Total Recelvables from Exchange Transactions 265,174,102 190,804,416

22 {b) Reconciliation for Impairiment Allowance on Receivables from Exchange Transactions

Impairment allowance/ provision 2021-2022 2020-2021
Kshs Kshs
At the beginning of the year 238,924,696 227958632
Additional provisions during the year 17,735,021 10,966,061
| At the end of the year 256,659,717 | 138,924,696
23 Inventorics
Description 2021-2022 1020-2021
Kshs Kshs
MMaintenance Stores 8,744 508 7681112
Stationery 5318 889 4151053
Medical Diugs, Reagents and Others 2,476,802 I.955 465
Cleaning Materials 1,470,530 1.329.219
Stocks Foodswulf 1,265277 Ta0,323
Bosling Plant 3B0.925 41,525
| Total inventories 19,656,931 16,218,703
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Anmual Reports and Financial Statements
For the year ended June 34, 2022,

Notes to the Financial Statements {Continued)
Property plant and Equipment includes the following assets that are fully depreciated:

Mormal annual
Cost or valuation depreciafion charge
Plant and Machinery 56,045 885 11,209.177
Motor Vehicles 65,507,791 16376947
Compuiers 53,410,655 17,785,748
Library Books 200032209 4,006,441
Crockery 1,934,074 386,815
Furniture and Fittings 17,720,174 1,544 D35
Total 214,650,783 50,119,531
15 Intangible Assets (ERF Software)
Diescription 1021-2022 2020-2021
Kshs Kshs
At beginning of the year o 6,618,001 6,423,977
Additions 4,809,001 206,000
Amortization - (11.976)
At end of the year 11,427,002 6,1 8,000
The current ERP 3 a0l under implemantation
26 Biological Assets
Description 2021-2022 2020-2021
Kshs Kshs
Al beginning of the year 633,040 B30, 000
Crain/(loss) during the year 37,000 (197,000
At end of the year o 670,00 633,04
27 Trade and Other Payables
Description ZO21-2022 2020-2021
Kshs Kshs
| Trade payables 26,062,125 11.313.769
Payments received in advance - 14,9388}
| Total trade and other payables 26,062,125 26,251,603
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MNotes 0o the Financial Statements (Continued)

28 Refundable Deposits and Frepayments from Customers

Description 2011-2022 2020-2021
Kshs kshs
Students” Caution Monesy I2101,025 15,650,225
[ Comtracions” Retention Accott 44,564,965 44 56, D69
General Third Parties 2,865,183 3779384
| Commission for University Education 422517 -
KUCCPS B50.500 2,209,500
Students” Union Fees [ 256,69 730,500
Unreferenced Deposits 851,515 S
Total deposiis 69,922,400 66,934,578
1%  Prepayments and Deposits
Drescription 2021-2022 2020-20211
Kshs Kshs
Students” Advance Receipts
Continung Students 54,238,225 41,337,921
Other Students 29,205,198 10,972,248
Total Prepayments and Deposits 83,443,421 52,310,169 |
30 Bank Loan
Description 2021-2022 2020-2021
Kshs Kshs
Balance brought forward 129 680,383 143.392,399
Lezs: Bepavments (15498 417) (13,712,001}
Balance at the end of vear 114,181,971 129,680,388
Current Partion of loan {due within 12 months) 17,240,133 5,035,420
MNon-Current Portion of loan {due beyond 12 months) 96,941,838 114,644,968
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

31 Deferrved lncome

Description 2021-2622 | 1020-2021
TNO FF Project : 470,558
Mational Research Fund 4025594 | 4,0255M
Health Sector Support Project = 130T.ELG
Conflici Violence and Environmental Change Project 3,884,596 2026089
Water Hyacinth Project o 104,245 104 245
Clean Cooling Solutions (NEF) 13,150 R09,350
Promoticn Awarcness and Partictpation of Persans with Disability - 537397
Clean Cooking Seluticns (ADB) 2014 s.014
Becycling Networks Projest o - 242 658
ACEI World Bank 49277661 | 73.043.730
Commonwealth - TEL/Delta Project 408,307 44 698
Crrassroot Financial Innovation 10,164,554 6,451 584
Scholarship Fund 62,242 69,242
Safc Water and Waste Management 6,957,994 | 3,738,372
Wheel Change = 573,280 | 1,339.744
MNeonatal Sepsis Study 391,911 391911
WHO (Omne Health for Vector Bome Diseases) 1,562,163 2,283,613
Maize Yield 7.500 6,900
I ool Contaieas 2967174 | 4.176.708
Participatory Innovation 751,786 1,.B95.45]
Tranzsformative Innovation 493 451 523518
ACU-ECR Training 4,560 4,560
Institational Development Fund (NRF) 12,487,523 | 15958929
Healthy Tnsect Projeat 4014777 | 1,368,060
Maore Crop Per Drop 151,100 -
Acheta Domesticus and Gryvllus Bima E30,960 3
VLIR | 942,768 :
Pilot Health 163,686 ]
[EDCTP-CDAE 6,050,944 5
Parkinsons Awareness (FACKS) ' 22,874
AFFEAR 1,415,132
 Swine 350,082 2
TransCICT 202,032 3
Pamiga Project . 1 06,000
USAID Boresha Jamii 1,780,740 i)
Total Deferred Income 111,389,116 | 123,030,739
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32 Employes Benefit Obligations

Description 021-2022 2020-2021
Kshs Kshs
Employes Benefit Obligations 2,651,352 o4 800,640
Part Time Lecturers 20123286 | 25,056,29
ERA Withholding Tax Contral - VAT - 448,375
| Payroll Deductions Ei'E]-lhannnS frd:ﬂlfil.ll"-’ &l 104,674
Total Employee Benefit Obligations 27956, 205 91429 985

A3 Financial Risk Management

The University's activities expose it 10 a variety of financial nsks including credit and liquidity
risks and effects of changes in foreign currency. The Universiy®s overall risk management
programme focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and sceks to
minimise the potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceplable
levels of rzk, The University does not hedge any nsks and has in place policies to ensure that
credit is only extended to customers with an established credit history.

The University’s financial risk management objectives and policies are detaled below:

i} Credit risk
The University has exposure to credit risk, which is the rizk that a counterparty will be unable
1o pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk anises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits
with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investments.
Manapement assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors. Individual nsk limits are set based on intemal or
external assessment in accordance with lmits set by the dicectors. The amounts prescnted in
the statement of fnancial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by

the University’s management based on prior experience and ther assessment of the curment

SCOTIOMIC EnvVITonment.

Financial Risk Management
The camyving amount of financial aszets recorded in the financial statements represenfing the

University’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any

collateral obtained is made up as follows:
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Total i Past due Impaired
RIMOURT
Kshs Kths Kshs Kshs
As ot 30 Jume 2022
HEScoptbic) I enchangs s21833.819 | 263330402 | 1842700 | 256650717
transaciEnne A
Bank balanees 156977473 | 156877473 - :
Total 678,810,202 | 420308 875 1g42.700 | 256,659,717
Ag at 30 June 2021
Recsivables from excbangs 414,043,160 | 175,118,464 162,100 | 238 924 506
ransactiens
| R.:ecw&.hlus from non-exchange 14,523,852 14,523,852 ) i
i ransaciuons 1
Bank balamces 162970 859 | 162974859 | - - F
Totl 501,541,671 | 3ISLGITATS | 1,062,100 | 238,924.6% |

Financial Risk Management

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debes as they contimue
trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for
uncollectible amounts that the University has recognised in the financial statements is
considered adequate o cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts. The University Council
sets the University's credit policies and objectives and lays down parameters within which the

varions aspects of credit nsk management are operated

if) Liguidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the University Council, who
have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the
University's short, medium and long-term finding and liquidity management requiremenis.
The University manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and actual

cash flows,

EL



Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and Technology
Annual Reporss and Financiel Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2022,

Motes to the Financial Statements (Contlnued)

Financial Risk Management

iii) Market risk

The University has put in place an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced
by the Entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and lest the design and effectiveness of its internal
aceounting and operational controls,

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices
and foreign exchange rates which will affect the University's income or the value of itz holding
of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Overall
responsibility for managing market risk rests with tha Audit, Risk and Governance Committes.
a) Forelgn curreéncy risk

The University has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure anses through purchases
of goads and services that are done in currencies other than the local currency. Invoices
denominated in foreign currencies are converted af the time of payment is done using the
prevailling exchange rate. The Umiversity manages forcign exchange nsk form future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and Habilities by projecting for expected sales
proceeds and matching the same with expected payments.

Financial Risk Management
The carrying amount of the University’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and

monetary liabilitics at the end of the reporting poriod are as follows:

Fy 1022
Diker
In Kshs eurrencies Tatal
Kshs Kshs Kshs

As At 30 June 2022
Financial A.m:tl'
Cash at Bank 151,081,370 § 896,103 156,977,473
Total Financial Assets 151,081,370 5896103 | 156977473
Financial Liabilities
Trade And Other Payables 26,062,125 : 26,062,125
Herrowings 114,181,971 = 114,181,971
Total Financizl Liabilities 140,244,096 - 140,244,096
Net Foreign Currency Asseti(Liability) | 16,537,274 5,996,064 16,733,338
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Motes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Capital Risk Management
The objectrve of the University’s capital risk management is o safeguard the University’s

ability to continge a5 & going concern. The University capital structure comprises of the

following fumds:

021-2023 2020-2021
Kshs Kshs
Bevenue Beserve 37,089,041 (92,204,641}
Capital Grants Reserve ) T458 515076 | 3,243 515,076
Toial Funds 3,492 903,777 3151310435
| Total Borrowings 114,181,971 120 530 358
Less: Cash And Bank Balances (1569774730 | (162,974.359)
Net Debv(Excess Cash And Cash Equivalens) {42,795,502) (33,294,471
Cearing 12% 15%

34  Related Party DMsclosures
Nature of related party relationships

Entities and other parties relaied 1o the University include these parties who have ability to
exercise control or exercise significant mfluence over its operating and finnneial decisions.
Related parties include managers ot personnel, their associates and close family members.

Government of Renya

The Government of Kenya is the principal sharcholder of the University, holding 100% of the

University’s equity interest,

Diher related parties include:
i) The Parent Ministry.
i} County Governmenis
mj  Key management
iv)  Council Members

a) Key management compensation

Council 15,534,167 14,088,025
Compensation to key management 67,385,164 80,502 384
Totnl #1,919,331 24,590,409
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Motes to the Financial Statements (Continuwed)
35 JOOUST Enterprise Limited

The University registered JOOUST enterprises Limited in 2017-201 8 financial year. The company
opened a bank account in July 2021, and at the end of the period, the bank balance was Kshs
224,645. During the year under review, the enterprise made sales of Kshs. 3,052,053, comprising
of Kshs. 1,423,482 Kghe 512,455 and Kshs. 1,116,118 from sale of bottled warer, farm income
and sale of sanitizers respectively.

36 Slaya Learning Centre

Siaya County Government donated 50 acres of land to the University to host the School of
Agniculture and Food Secunty. The University is in the process of obtaining the title for this land.

37 Contingent Liability

The University had no contingent liabilities set to materialise within the next |2 months or in
the financial vear.

3%  Ewvents after the Reporting Feriod
There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting peniod.

39  Ultimate and Holding Enfity
The University is a State Corporation or a Semi- Autonomous Govermment Agency under the

Ministry of Education. Its uliimate parent is the Government of Kenya.

40 Corrency
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs).
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19. APPENDIX
Appendiz 1: Implementation Status of Auditor-General’s Recommendations

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management
comments that were provided fo the auditor,

R Issue / Statug; | Timeframe:
Lot Put o date

No. on the gﬂ“ﬁ" Focal Point personto | o bl -
extemal Management commetits | resolve lhe_im_(h’mu: bl exsect the
audit and designation) Resolved] | - e to be

g m Auditor resolvad)

4.1 Valuation of | Valuation of Assetson | Chief Finance Officer
Fixed Assets | going
Signed:

Vice Chancellor
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Joramogi Opinga Odinga University af Science and Technology

Annual Reports and Financial Stafements

For the year EI'III'-B‘I_.I!'_H.{H'_-F_I_E Ja, 2022, _ -
Appendix IV: Transfers from Other Government Entities

: TARAMOGI OGINGA ODINGA UNIVERSITY OF
ENTETY NAME: SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY

Break down of Transfers from the State Department of University Education

FY 1021/2022

a. | Recurrent Grants Bank Statement e, ﬁl:;c?jﬁ;?
Daiz (K3hs) EI‘I!EHI‘II-.'; relate

;‘ﬁiﬁﬁl‘:'mwm“ 232021 | 88,979,734 2021 2022

4 91 2021 88,979,734 2021 2022

" L2020 ER,979.734 2021 2023

-y [ 172020210 ER.070.734 2021 032

! 112652021 ER,979.734 2021 2022

" 12282021 88,979,734 2021 2022

" U022 ER,979.734 2021 2022

" kel (e d 2B,079,.734 2021 2022

= 4/4/2022 86,979,734 2021 2023

" S2R022 88,979,734 2021 2022

" BES2022 1,157,576 2021 2022

" 282022 o1,137.572 2021 2022

Total | 1,072,112,488

b. | Development Grants

Siate Department of University ; ;
Edieaiziin misd Rassarch 8/1202021 107,500,000 2021 2022
= M1GTIN22 107, 500,000 2021 2022

Total | 215,000,000

¢ | Donor Receipis

World Bank 3242022 75,000,000 2021 20332
World Bank 4112022 12,051,520 2021 2022
USAID-Eenya B/172021 [ 44,503,066 2021 2022
USAID-Kenya [0¢13/202 1 203,496,232 2021 2022
USAID-Eenya 21012022 138,093,891 2021 2022
USAID-Kenya 3282022 105,278,614 2021 2022
UsAID-Eenya 51902022 104,555,894 2021 2022
USAID-Kenya 51912022 104,153 643 2021 2022
MEF-5A 322021 4297113 2021 2022
GOTEBORGS University 1 20402022 828,858 2021 2022
GOTEBORGS University 0722021 1,278,191 2021 2022
SVERIGES LANETR 5724/20232 1,502,672 2021 2023
SYVERIGES LANETR 52212022 268,950 2021 2022
SVERIGES LANEBTR L 172e2021 1,628 Shb 2021 2022
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Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and Technology
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For the year ended June 30, 2022 _
Bank Statement | Amount I—m"i"m " L?i ':j::"
Date {Shs) amounts relate
EUFFORD Foundalion 12572022 2,153,504 221 2022
Copenhagen Business Handles 11/16/2021 18,287 904 2021 2022
University of Southampton 8132021 836,790 2021 2022
University of Southampton 3/23/2022 3,495,794 2021 2022
WHOD BI102021 2170400 21 2022
WHD 5112022 1,236,210 2021 2022
VRIE Universiteteit Brussel O/2d4r2021 1150401 22 222
VRUE Universiteeit Brussel 3232042 6,650 120 221 2022
KEOBENHAVEM B2l B.714.736 2021 HIE:'-!'_
Afnican Population and Health 072021 | 8.312,169 2021 2022
Rescarch
The Michael J Fox Foundation 202312022 3134227 2021 2022
Makerere University S/1942022 2,305 (400 2021 2022
George August University 10012021 307,600 20212022
George August University 2000 40,95 2021 IDE
University of Southampton 12012021 3,980,266 021 2022
Iﬁmﬁ;‘u A 31012021 500,000 2021 2022
The Burogesn Afniean lustiiats 11/2402021 S00.000 2021 2022
of Management I
The European Affican Institute 11/23/202] 500,000 2021 2022
of Management
The Eurcpesn African Institute 71142021 500,000 2021 2022
of Management
The Furopean African Institute 21142021 500,000 3021 202
of Management
Tistal 970 REL 486

Appropriation In Aid{AlA)
Tuition and Other related fees 435,336,250 2021 2022
Rental revenue 1 5,350,096 2021 2022
Oher Incomes 108,495 777 202| 2022
Total 559, 182,122
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